
 

 

A G E N D A  

REGULAR MEETING 

Governing Board of the 
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

Meeting Date and Time:  June 20, 2024, 10:00 A.M. 

Location:  Long Beach City College Liberal Arts Campus Board Room 
4901 East Carson Street, Building T1100 
Long Beach, CA 90808 

The public may attend the meeting in person 
or view the meeting online via Zoom: 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5622477111 
Meeting ID:   562 247 7111 

Passcode:   boardmtg 

OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE PUBLIC TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND PROVIDE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

In‐person comments may be provided at the meeting but will not be accepted via Zoom. Members of the public 

attending the meeting in person will be given an opportunity to address the Board on (1) any item on the agenda 

prior to the Board’s consideration of that item, including the consent and closed session agendas; and (2) subjects 

within the subject matter jurisdiction of  the Governing Board during Public Comment on Non‐Agenda  Items. 

Members of the public who wish to speak should complete a speaker card indicating the agenda item number 

on which they will comment or designate “general public comment” and return the card to the Board Secretary. 

Each speaker will be allowed to speak for up to 3 minutes per agenda item.  

Written  comments or materials may be  submitted  by emailing  publiccomment@acta.org  or  brought  to  the 

meeting. If you request to distribute documents to the Governing Board, please present the Board Secretary with 

twelve (12) copies. All written comments or materials submitted for the meeting will be entered into the official 

meeting minutes. For comments by email, please submit written comments prior to 3:00 pm on the day before 

the scheduled meeting.  Comments submitted by email will be distributed to the Governing Board prior to the 

meeting and entered into the official meeting minutes. 

As a covered entity under Title  II of  the Americans with Disabilities Act,  the Alameda Corridor Transportation 

Authority  (ACTA) does not discriminate on  the basis of disability  and, upon  request, will provide  reasonable 

accommodation  to  ensure  equal  access  to  its programs,  services,  and  activities.    Sign  language  interpreters, 

assistive  listening devices, and  translation  services may be provided.   To ensure availability, 72‐hour advance 

notice is required.  Contact the ACTA Office at (562) 247‐7777. 

ROLL CALL 

CLOSED SESSION 

 



  June 20, 2024 

  ２

OPEN SESSION 

A.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON NON‐AGENDA ITEMS 

B.  REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

i. Status of MOW RFP Process 

ii. April 2024 Performance Report 

iii. ACTA Policy – Governing Board Engagement 

C.  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  

 Minutes of the May 16, 2024 Regular Governing Board Meeting of the Alameda Corridor Transportation 

Authority 

D.  AGENDA ITEMS 

Consent Agenda (1):  

1. RECEIVE AND FILE Monthly Financial Reports as of April 30, 2024 

Regular Agenda (2‐9):  

2. APPROVE Resolution No. JPA 24‐1 approving the ACTA Officer Positions  

3. APPROVE and ADOPT the ACTA Officer and Employee Publicly Available Pay Schedule for 

Fiscal Year 2024/2025 

4. APPROVE ACTA Annual Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025  

5. APPROVE Modifications to ACTA Delegation of Authorities 

6. APPROVE Agreement for Information Technology (IT) Services with BCAWR (C0922) for a term of 

4‐years and compensation not‐to‐exceed $2,000,000 

7. APPROVE Agreement for Environmental Services with Jenkins Gales & Martinez (C0923) for a term 

of 6 months and compensation not‐to‐exceed $132,000 

8. APPROVE a Revised Second Amendment to Agreement No. M0899 with Union Pacific Railroad for 

the Dolores Yard Crossover Project Reimbursement of ACTA Costs for Construction Related 

Activities, increasing the reimbursement amount by $865,451 and extending the term to three years 

9. APPROVE amendments to two contracts with the IBI Group for services to assist ACTA with its  

Revenue Assessment Verification System: (a) Amendment 16 to Agreement No. C0719 to assign the 

Agreement from IBI Group, a California Partnership, to Arcadis, a California Partnership, extend the 

term five years and increase the budget by $460,800; and (b) Amendment 16 to Agreement No. 

C0783 to assign the Agreement from IBI Group, a California Partnership, to Acradis, a California 

Partnership, extend the term five years and increase the budget by $500,000. 

10. APPROVE Election of Chair and Vice‐Chair for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 

ADJOURNMENT 



ACTA Maintenance of Way Services RFP
June 20, 2024



Background 

• At the March 21, 2024 Board meeting, the Board approved an 18-month 
contract extension of the Maintenance of Way (MOW) Services contract 
(Agreement C0885). 

• The extension was to enable preparing a Request for Proposal (RFP), 
evaluating/selecting a preferred service provider, contracting and 
mobilizing MOW forces under the new contract.

• The Board requested staff to provide a schedule for the competitive bid 
process.  



Procurement Schedule
Following is the tentative procurement schedule for a new MOW Services contract. 

RFP Date
Edit current contract documents July 2024
Co-counsel review August 2024
Release RFP September 2024
Bid Period Ends December 2024
Evaluation Period Ends January 2025
Complete ACTA Negotiations February 2025
NMA Approval (Both Railroads and Ports with Harbor Commissions) May 2025
Recommendation for ACTA Board Approval June 2025
Execute Contract July 2025
Mobilize MOW Service Provider August 2025



Performance Report 
April 2024



POLA POLB Combined

Apr-24 %Change Apr-24 %Change Apr-24 % Change

Imports 416,929 21.3% 364,665 16.3% 781,594 18.9%

Exports 133,046 50.8% 98,266 -19.9% 231,312 9.7%

Total Loaded 549,975 27.3% 462,931 6.2% 1,012,906 16.7%

Empty 220,362 -14.0% 287,493 30.7% 507,855 6.7%

Total 770,337 11.9% 750,424 14.4% 1,520,761 13.1%

YTD % Change* YTD % Change* YTD % Change*

Imports 1,646,998 28.2% 1,322,375 19.0% 2,969,373 23.9%

Exports 537,072 44.5% 377,363 -20.2% 914,435 8.3%

Total Loaded 2,184,070 31.8% 1,699,738 7.3% 3,883,808 19.9%

Empty 966,771 11.3% 1,053,508 32.7% 2,020,279 21.5%

Total 3,150,841 24.8% 2,753,246 15.8% 5,904,087 20.4%

Port Container Throughput (TEUs) –  April 2024

* Relative to same period in CY 2023 2



SP Bay Port TEUs Trends through April 2024

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

 1,800

 2,000

Jan Feb Mar Apri May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

TE
U

s

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Thousands

3



Alameda Corridor Performance
April 2024

Apr 2024 CY24 FY24

Revenue $10.5 M $41.3 M $94.0 M

Change from 2023 35.2 % 39.2 % 17.1 %

TEU’s 435,376 1,754,154 4,106,295

Change from 2023 27.9 % 35.2 % 9.2 %

4



Corridor Revenue Performance
CY2019 to CY2024

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0

$9.0

$10.0

$11.0

$12.0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

M
on

th
ly

 R
ev

en
ue

(in
 m

ill
io

ns
)

5



ACTA Revenue & Port TEUS

6

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

$10

$30

$50

$70

$90

$110

$130

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 *

Po
rt

 T
EU

s (
M

ill
io

ns
)

AC
TA

 R
ev

en
ue

 (M
ill

io
ns

)

Revenue Port TEUs Linear (Port TEUs)

Worldwide 
Recession

ILWU-PMA 
Negotiations

Tariffs/ 
COVID 19

ILWU-PMA 
Negotiations

*Numbers updated thru April 2024, then averaged for year. 



ACTA Legislative Program
June 20, 2024



Policy Discussion 

• At the May 16, 2024, Board meeting, the Governing Board discussed the 
importance of ACTA taking proactive steps to develop its Legislative 
Program and include Governing Board engagement.

• The Board recommended the advancement of policy aimed at increasing 
both revenue and cargo moving through the Alameda Corridor.

• The new Legislative Program will facilitate collaboration between ACTA 
and other agencies to advance investment and policy strategies. 



Next Steps
1.   ACTA Engagement:

Collaboration to advance Legislative Program  

1. Metro – ACTA collaborate with Metro 
e.g. LB-ELA Corridor, Short Haul Rail Study, Goods Movement Study. 

2. SCAG – ACTA collaborate with SCAG in goods movement/rail efforts. 

3. Ports – ACTA collaborate with Ports of LA/LB at senior management and staff levels on 
increasing freight movement by rail and increasing revenues. 

2. Board Engagement:
• Board members are currently engaged individually at each agency.
• Either continue to bring Legislative Program status back to entire Board or create an ad hoc 

or standing committee to oversee the Legislative Program.  



 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY GOVERNING 
BOARD HELD AT LONG BEACH CITY COLLEGE LIBERAL ARTS CAMPUS BOARD ROOM, 4901 E. CARSON STREET, 
BUILDING T1100, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA 90808 ON MAY 16, 2024 AT 10:00 A.M. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Members present: 

Frank Colonna, Port of Long Beach 

Suely Saro, City of Long Beach  

Alternate members present: 

Michael DiBernardo, Port of Los Angeles  

Sam Joumblat, Port of Long Beach   

I. Lee Williams, Port of Los Angeles  

Members absent: 

Michael Cano, Los Angeles County Metro  

Tim McOsker, City of Los Angeles  

Also present: 

Michael Leue, ACTA, Chief Executive Officer  

Kevin Scott, ACTA, Chief Financial Officer  

Graham Christie, ACTA, Chief Operating Officer  

Heather McCloskey, ACTA, Co-General Counsel  

Thomas Oh, ACTA, Co-General Counsel  

Maria Melendres, ACTA, Governing Board Secretary 

The meeting was called to order at 10:07 a.m. by Chair Saro.   

CLOSED SESSION 

None 

OPEN SESSION  

A. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

 There were no requests by the public to address the Governing Board. 

B. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS  

• PROCLAMATION OF APPRECIATION FOR DUANE KENAGY 

Duane Kenagy was recognized for his service to ACTA upon his retirement from the Port of Long Beach.    

• March 2024 CORRIDOR PERFORMANCE  

Michael Leue presented the Corridor performance statistics through March 2024.   



 

2 

C.   MINUTES   

ACTA GOVERNING BOARD REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2024 – APPROVED. 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 21, 2024, of the Governing Board of the Alameda Corridor 
Transportation Authority, were presented to the Governing Board.   

Board Member Colonna motioned, seconded by Board Member Joumblat that the minutes of the March 
21, 2024, Regular Meeting of the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority be approved as submitted.  
Carried by the following vote: 

AYES: Colonna, DiBernardo, Joumblat, Saro, Williams   
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Cano, McOsker  

D.   AGENDA ITEMS 

Consent Agenda 

1. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS AS OF FEBRUARY 29, 2024 – RECEIVED AND FILED.  

Communication from Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer, dated May 16, 2024, recommending that the 
monthly financial reports as of February 29, 2024, be received and filed, was presented to the Governing 
Board.  

No public comment was received on the Consent Agenda. 

Regular Agenda 

2. 2024-2025 ACTA INSURANCE COVERAGE – INFORMATION.   

 Communication from Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer, dated May 16, 2024, with information on 
ACTA’s 2024-2025 renewal of insurance coverage, was presented to the Governing Board. 

No public comment was received on Item No. 2.  

3. PRELIMINARY OPERATING BUDGET – FY 2024-2025 (FY2025) – REVIEWED. 

 Communication from Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer, dated March 21, 2024, with a preliminary 
budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025, was presented to the Governing Board. 

No public comment was received on Item No. 3.  

4.   MOFFATT & NICHOL – ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES – AGREEMENT NO. C0921 – APPROVED.  

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated May 16, 2024, recommending the 
approval of the proposed Agreement No. C0921 with Moffatt & Nichol for on-call engineering services in 
the amount not to exceed $10,000,000 for a five-year term and authorize the Chief Executive Officer or 
his designee to execute said agreement, was presented to the Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on Item No. 4.  

Board Member Joumblat motioned, seconded by Board Member Colonna that Item No. 4 be approved 
as recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    



 

3 

AYES: Colonna, DiBernardo, Joumblat, Saro, Williams   
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Cano, McOsker  

5.  CITY OF COMPTON – ARTESIA BOULEVARD BRIDGE – RATIFY AGREEMENT NO. R0919 & AMENDMENT 
NO. 1 – SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. R0919 – APPROVED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated May 16, 2024, recommending the 
Chief Executive Office to ratify the approval of Agreement No. R0919 and Amendment No. 1, and the 
approval of the Second Amendment to Agreement No. R0919 with the City of Compton for a total not-
to-exceed amount of $226,000, was presented to the Governing Board.  

No public comment was received on Item No. 5.  

Board Member Williams motioned, seconded by Board Member Colonna that Item No. 5 be approved as 
recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Colonna, DiBernardo, Joumblat, Saro, Williams   
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Cano, McOsker  

6. METRO – I-105 EXPRESSLANES PROJECT – REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. R0920 – APPROVED AS 
AMENDED.   

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated May 16, 2024, recommending the 
approval of Reimbursement Agreement with the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority (“Metro”) to cover ACTA expenditures for design review services associated with Metro’s 
proposed addition of express lanes to the I-105 freeway between the 405 freeway in an easterly 
direction to Studebaker Road in the City of Norwalk and authorize the Chief Executive Officer or his 
designee to execute the Agreement, was presented to the Governing Board.  

Board Member DiBernardo motioned, seconded by Board Member Colonna that Item No. 6 be 
approved as recommended.  Carried by the following vote:    

AYES: Colonna, DiBernardo, Joumblat, Saro, Williams   
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Cano, McOsker  

ADJOURNMENT 

At 10:36 a.m., the meeting was adjourned sine die. 



  ITEM #01 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject:  RECEIVE AND FILE Monthly Financial Reports as of April 30, 2024 

Recommendation:  

Receive and file the Monthly Financial Reports as of April 2024.  

Discussion: 

The financial package includes the following: 

 Executive Summary – Monthly key financial activity (See Transmittal 1).  

Performance Comparisons – Current Month (April) and year‐to‐date (both by fiscal year and calendar year) of 
Revenue (corridor use fee) and corresponding TEU information; Change is compared to prior year actuals by 
month, fiscal year and calendar year. 

Use Fees and Container Charges – Use fee and container charge information is provided in a bar chart by fiscal 
year.   The current year shows the actuals to date overlain on the approved  fiscal year budget, and with a 
notation of the latest forecast for fiscal year revenue. 

 Monthly Financial Statements (See Transmittal 2). 

Statements of Net Position ‐ Unaudited statement of ACTA’s assets and liabilities as of April 30, 2024.  The 
audited June 30, 2023 financial information is also included for comparative purposes to the beginning of the 
fiscal year.   

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes  in Net Position – Fiscal Year 2024 unaudited statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position through April 30, 2024.  Also included is the statement as of 
April 2023 which has been included for comparative purposes for ten months of information.   

Comparison of Budget Functional Expenses – Operating Budget by Expense Type  ‐ The  fiscal year‐to‐date 
budget is compared to actual revenue and expenditures incurred as of April 30, 2024. 

Comparison of Budget Functional Expenses – Operating Budget by Funds ‐ The fiscal year‐to‐date budget is 
compared to actual revenue and expenditures incurred as of April 30, 2024.  



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #01 

  ２

Cash and Investment Summary – Cash and investment balances and the corresponding investment schedule 
are being presented as of April 30, 2024.   The cash and  investment balances are segregated by  institution, 
account number reference, and account description.  Balances are presented in book and market value.  Also 
included are  the grant  funds received  for the SR‐47 project during the current  fiscal year. The  investment 
schedule summarizes the composition of the agency’s investment portfolio and how the portfolio complies 
with the Board approved Investment Policy.   

Cash Flow – Cash flow for the month of April 2024  is presented both  in a summary format and a detailed 
format. A fiscal year‐to‐date cash flow showing all activity through April 30, 2024 is also presented in both a 
summary format and a detailed format. The dollar amounts represent the book values for each account.  

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this time. 

 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 ‐ Executive Summary – Key Financial Activity 

Transmittal 2 ‐ Monthly Financial Statements as of April 30, 2024 



Key Financial Activity

April ‘24 vs. ‘23

Transmittal 1



Corridor Performance
April ’24 vs. ’23

Railroad Self-Assessment Revenue

’24 ’23 Change

Apr Revenue $10.5 M $7.8 M 35.2 %

Calendar Year to Date (Jan-Apr) * $41.30 M $29.6 M 39.2 %

Fiscal Year to Date (July-Apr) * $94.0 M $80.3 M 17.1 %

* Note:  Does not include reconciliations / adjustments for fiscal year-end.

2



Operations – On Corridor

’24 ’23 Change

TEU’s * 414,582 (7,534) 330,325 (5,977) 25.5 %

Calendar Year to Date 1,683,706 (7,586) 1,261,061 (5,705) 33.5 %

Fiscal Year to Date 3,965,678 (7,088) 3,643,117 (6,506) 8.9 %

Operations – Around Corridor (Container Charges)

’24 ’23 Change

TEU’s * 20,794 (378) 10,077 (182) 106.3 %

Calendar Year to Date 70,448 (317) 36,505 (165) 93.0 %

Fiscal Year to Date 140,618 (251) 116,201 (208) 21.0 %

Operations – Combined

’24 ’23 Change

TEU’s * 435,376 (7,912) 340,402 (6,160) 27.9 %

Calendar Year to Date 1,754,154 (7,903) 1,297,566 (5,870) 35.2 %

Fiscal Year to Date 4,106,295 (7,340) 3,759,317 (6,713) 9.2 %

3

Note:  Numbers in (    ) are the Average Daily Containers,  2024 Daily TEU’s ÷ 1.8343 = Containers. 
      Numbers in (    ) are the Average Daily Containers,  2023 Daily TEU’s ÷ 1.8421 = Containers. 
* Containers trucked to off-dock intermodal yards that are charged an ACTA fee 

Corridor Volumes
April ’24 vs. ’23

TEUs (Daily Containers)



2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
39 40 44 47 55 49 44 36 39 42 42 45

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
47 38 34 37 38 33 28 30 28 27 31

N
um

be
r o

f T
ra

in
s

Alameda Corridor Train Counts

Average Daily Trains*:

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

 18,000

 20,000

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

4



95.2 94.0
85.3 80.5

93.2 97.3 99.4
109.0 105.5 103.6 102.8

112.9 112.5
102.1

117.4

94.6 97.3

94.0

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

M
ill

io
ns

Fiscal Year

87.2

Use Fees & Container Charges
as of April 30, 2024

5Budget Actual


Chart1

		FY07

		FY08

		FY09

		FY10

		FY11

		FY12

		FY13

		FY14

		FY15

		FY16

		FY17

		FY18

		FY19

		FY20

		FY21

		FY22

		FY23

		FY24



Fiscal Year

Millions

95.2

94

85.3

80.5

93.2

97.3

99.4

109

105.5

103.6

102.8

112.9

112.5

102.1

117.4

94.6

97.3

94



Sheet1

				FY03		FY04		FY05		FY06		FY07		FY08		FY09		FY10		FY11		FY12		FY13		FY14		FY15		FY16		FY17		FY18		FY19		FY20		FY21		FY22		FY23		FY24

		Millions		54.7		62.0		65.5		80.5		95.2		94.0		85.3		80.5		93.2		97.3		99.4		109.0		105.5		103.6		102.8		112.9		112.5		102.1		117.4		94.6		97.3		94.0







1

Statements of Net Position
April 30, 2024 & June 30, 2023



2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, &  
Changes in Net Position

 For ten months ended April 30, 2024 & April 30, 2023



3

Comparison of Budget By Expense Type
as of April 30, 2024



4

Comparison of Budget By Funds
as of April 30, 2024



5

Cash & Investment Summary
as of April 30, 2024



6

Cash & Investment Summary (cont’d)
as of April 30, 2024



7

Cash Flow
as of April 30, 2024



8

Cash Flow
as of April 30, 2024



9

Cash Flow – YTD
as of April 30, 2024



10

Cash Flow – YTD
as of April 30, 2024



  ITEM #02 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To: Governing Board 

Meeting Date: June 20, 2024 

From: Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: APPROVE Resolution No. JPA 24-1 approving the ACTA Officer Positions  

Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the approval of the proposed resolution to clarify and affirm the current ACTA Officers 
authorized by ACTA’s Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated as of December 18, 1996 
(as amended, the “Joint Powers Agreement”).  The proposed resolution clarifies the appointment of ACTA’s 
Treasurer. 

Pursuant to the authority granted under California Government Code Section 6505.6, allowing Joint Powers 
Authority (“JPA”) Treasurer duties to be performed by an employee or officer of a JPA entity, in 2014 ACTA 
approved a resolution assigning the Treasurer duties to the ACTA Chief Financial Officer. At that time, and until 
now, ACTA also appointed a port representative as Treasurer to oversee the ACTA CFO’s performance of those 
Treasurer duties. Due to the authority of the Government Code sections authorizing an ACTA officer to perform 
Treasurer duties, the additional appointment of a Treasurer is not necessary. Therefore, it is recommended that 
Resolution No. JPA 24-1 be approved to clarify the appointment of the Treasurer position and affirm the remaining 
ACTA Officer positions.  

Background: 

Section 4E (Officers) of the Joint Powers Agreement requires that the Governing Board appoint qualified personnel 
to fill the following positions:  

1. General Manager, who shall be responsible for the administration of the Authority; 

2. Authority Engineer, who shall be a registered professional engineer in California responsible for 
engineering and construction of the Alameda Corridor; 

3. Treasurer, who shall be selected in accordance with Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6505.6;1 

4. Auditor/Controller, who shall be selected in accordance with Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 
6505.6; 

5. General Counsel, appointed from the City Attorney’s Office of the City of Long Beach and/or the City of 
Los Angeles who shall provide legal advice to the Authority; 

6. Secretary, who shall keep the official records and correspondence of the Authority; and 

7. Such other officers as determined by the Governing Board. 

 
1 Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6506.6 allow such position to be filled by an officer or employee of the Authority. 
These sections are provided in Transmittal 2. 



  June 20, 2024 
  ITEM #02 

 ２ 

Discussion: 

Since ACTA’s inception, officer positions have been filled by either Port or ACTA employees.  Over the years, with 
Governing Board approval, the officer positions have been renewed or additional positions have been added, re-
named and/or consolidated as follows: 

General Manager 

The original role of the General Manager (GM) was augmented in 1998 with the Board appointment of a Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO). The GM position was re-named the General Manager and Chief Operating Officer 
(GM/COO). Later the GM/COO position was abolished, and the duties absorbed by the CEO.  

By the proposed resolution, it is affirmed that the position of the CEO includes the duties originally assigned 
to the General Manager, and that the CEO title replaces the GM title.   

Authority Engineer 

The role of Authority Engineer was initially performed by engineering representatives of both POLA and POLB. 
In 1998, the position was renamed the Director of Construction and Engineering (DCE) and filled with an ACTA 
contract employee. In early 2003, an ACTA employee was nominated to the position. In mid-2003, the position 
was absorbed into the CEO position, when the DCE was promoted to the CEO position. The current CEO has 
the requisite California PE license.  

By the proposed resolution, it is affirmed that the CEO also fills the role of the Authority Engineer. 

Treasurer 

Pursuant to a 2014 Resolution, the Treasurer functions and duties are performed by ACTA’s Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO).  In compliance with Government Code Section 6505, the CFO is required to authorize a certified 
public accountant to perform annual independent audits of ACTA’s accounts and records. 

By the proposed resolution, it is affirmed that the CFO also fills the role of Treasurer. 

Auditor/Controller 

The function of Auditor/Controller was originally performed by Port-provided personnel on a part-time basis, 
with the Auditor provided by one Port and the Controller provided by the other. The role of Controller was 
absorbed into the ACTA CFO position April 10 2014 (JPA 2014-3).  

For some time, ACTA maintained a separate Internal Auditor position during the peak of construction activity, 
but this role has subsequently been performed by independent external auditors under the purview of the 
CFO and overseen by the Audit Committee of the ACTA Governing Board. 

Pursuant to the authority granted by Government Code Section 6505.6 and as set forth in the proposed 
resolution, it is affirmed that the position of the CFO includes the duties required to be performed by the 
Auditor/Controller. 



  June 20, 2024 
  ITEM #02 

 ３ 

General Counsel 

The role of General Counsel, which must be filled by either the City Attorney’s Office of the City of Los Angeles 
or the City of Long Beach, was originally filled by the City of Los Angeles. By Board resolution in 2005, the role 
is now performed by Co-General Counsel from each of the City Attorney’s Offices. Their services are 
reimbursed by ACTA. 

By the proposed resolution, it is affirmed that General Counsel title has been replaced by the Co-General 
Counsel title.  

Secretary 

The role of Secretary has been provided by both ACTA and port staff over the years. Currently, the position is 
being performed by an ACTA staff member, as approved by the Governing Board in March 2013.  

By the proposed resolution, it is affirmed that Secretary functions and title remain the same. 

Chief Operating Officer 

The role of Chief Operating Officer (COO), as defined in the ACTA reorganization previously presented to the 
Board, has been added to the ACTA officers.  The ACTA Joint Powers Agreement authorizes the Board to add 
additional officers as it determines necessary. The COO reports to the CEO and provides leadership in contract 
management with technical guidance to the performance of contracted services including engineering and 
railroad maintenance of way. 

By the proposed resolution, it is affirmed that the position of Chief Operating Officer is an ACTA officer.  

It is recommended that the Board approve the attached resolution, affirming the ACTA Officer positions.  

Budget Impact: 

The approved ACTA Operating Budget will not be impacted by the adoption of this resolution.   

Co-General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co-General Counsel has reviewed and approved the proposed Resolution as to form. 

Transmittals: 
Transmittal 1 – Resolution JPA 24-1 
Transmittal 2 – Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6506.6 



 1 of 2   

RESOLUTION NO. JPA-24-1 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE OFFICER POSITIONS AND FUNCTIONS OF 
THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 

WHEREAS, in December 1996, the City of Los Angeles and the City of Long Beach acting by and 

through their respective Harbor Commissions entered into the Amended and Restated Joint 

Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Long Beach and the City of Los Angeles to 

be known as the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA); and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 4.E of the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 

(Agreement) names the Officer positions and functions, and provides that such Officers shall be 

appointed by the Governing Board of ACTA; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 4E of the Agreement lists the titles of the Officers as the General Manager, 
Authority Engineer, Treasurer, Auditor/Controller, General Counsel, Secretary, and other officers 
as determined by the Governing Board; and 

WHEREAS, over the course of the years since 1996, including Resolution JPA 14-3, positions 

have been added or re-titled and functions changed or consolidated; and  

 

WHEREAS, Governing Board of ACTA desires to affirm the current list of Officers by position and 

function, as related to the original 1996 list of Officer positions and functions; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of ACTA does hereby affirm the 

following: 

 

1. As regards the original General Manager position, the ACTA Chief Executive Officer 

(CEO) position has replaced the General Manager (GM) position, and the CEO performs 

the functions originally ascribed to the GM. The CEO is an ACTA Officer. 

 

2. As regards the original Authority Engineer position, the current CEO also fills the Authority 

Engineer position, and is a registered engineer in California, as required. The Authority 

Engineer is an ACTA Officer.  

 

3. In a support role to the CEO, the position of Chief Operating Officer (COO) is instated as 

part of a reorganization in 2024, which transitions to as-needed contract services, 

increases responsibility of ACTA staff, and requires management and technical direction 

of as-needed contract services.  The COO is an ACTA Officer. 

 

4. As regards the original Treasurer position, the ACTA Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

performs the functions required under Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6505.6. 

The Treasurer is an ACTA Officer. 

 



 2 of 2   

5. As regards the original Auditor/Controller position, the ACTA CFO fulfills the duties of 

Auditor/Controller, and the CFO, as overseen by the ACTA Audit Committee, conducts 

the functions required under Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6505.6. The 

Auditor/Controller is an ACTA Officer. 

 

6. As regards the original General Counsel position, which was to be provided by either of 

the two cities, the position is now filled by an attorney from each of the City Attorney’s 

Offices to provide ACTA’s legal support. The Co-General Counsel are ACTA Officers.   

 

7. As regards the original Secretary position, the position and functions have remained 

unchanged. The Secretary is an ACTA Officer. 

 

8. The Governing Board will evaluate the performance and approve salary adjustments of 

the CEO. The CEO will be responsible for the performance evaluations and salary 

adjustments of all other ACTA employees including officers. 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT the foregoing resolution was adopted by the ACTA Governing 

Board at its meeting held on this 20th day of June 2024 by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 

 
ATTEST: 

  By:       
Maria M. Melendres 
Board Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 

____________________________, 2024 
HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, City Attorney 

 

 

By:   
Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy City Attorney 
ACTA Co-General Counsel 



 1 of 1   

Government Code 6505.5 and 6505.6 
6505.5 (Amended by Stats. 1999, Ch. 83, Sec. 65. Effective January 1, 2000.) 

If a separate agency or entity is created by the agreement, the agreement shall designate the treasurer 

of one of the contracting parties, or in lieu thereof, the county treasurer of a county in which one of 

the contracting parties  is  situated, or a certified public accountant  to be  the depositary and have 

custody of all the money of the agency or entity, from whatever source.  The Treasurer or certified 

public accountant so designated shall do all of the following: 

(a) Receive and receipt  for all money of  the agency or entity and place  it  in  the  treasury of  the 

treasurer so designated to the credit of the agency or entity. 

(b) Be responsible, upon his or her official bond, for the safekeeping and disbursement of all agency 

or entity money so held by him or her. 

(c) Pay, when due, out of money of the agency or entity held by him or her, all sums payable on 

outstanding bonds and coupons of the agency or entity. 

(d) Pay any other sums due from the agency or entity from agency or entity money, or any portion 

thereof, only upon warrants of the public officer performing the functions of auditor or controller 

who has been designated by the agreement. 

(e) Verify and report in writing on the first day of July, October, January, and April of each year to 

the agency or entity and to the contracting parties to the agreement the amount of money he 

or she holds for the agency or entity, the amount of receipts since his or her last report, and the 

amount paid out since his or her last report. 

The officer performing the functions of Auditor or Controller shall be of the same public agency as the 

Treasurer  designated  as  depositary  pursuant  to  this  section.  However,  where  a  certified  public 

accountant has been designated as Treasurer of  the entity,  the auditor of one of  the  contracting 

parties or of a county in which one of the contracting parties is located shall be designated as auditor 

of the entity. The auditor shall draw warrants to pay demands against the agency or entity when the 

demands have been approved by any person authorized to so approve in the agreement creating the 

agency or entity. 

The governing body of the same public entity as the Treasurer and Auditor specified pursuant to this 

section  shall  determine  charges  to  be made  against  the  agency  or  entity  for  the  services  of  the 

Treasurer  and  Auditor.  However,  where  a  certified  public  accountant  has  been  designated  as 

Treasurer,  the governing body of  the  same public entity as  the Auditor  specified pursuant  to  this 

section shall determine charges to be made against the agency or entity for the services of the Auditor. 

6505.6 (Added by Stats. 1979, Ch. 276.) 

In lieu of the designation of a Treasurer and Auditor as set forth in Section 6505.5, the agency or entity 

may appoint one of its officers or employees to either or both of such positions. Such offices may be 

held by separate officers or employees or combined and held by one officer or employee. Such person 

or persons shall comply with  the duties and  responsibilities of  the office or offices as set  forth  in 

subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, of Section 6505.5. 

In the event the agency or entity designates its officers or employees to fill the functions of Treasurer 

or Auditor, or both, pursuant to this section, such officers or employees shall cause an independent 

audit to be made by a certified public accountant, or public accountant, in compliance with Section 

6505. 



  ITEM #03 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE and ADOPT the ACTA Officer and Employee Publicly Available Pay 
Schedule for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that the Governing Board approve and adopt the Publicly Available Pay Schedule for ACTA's Officers 

and Employees effective July 1, 2024. The Pay Schedule sets the range of salaries allowed for each ACTA position.   

Background: 

The California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) requires its member agencies to have each agency's 

governing body approve its employee Pay Schedule and thereafter make it publicly available. This item is brought 

before  the Governing Board  for approval  to update  the past Governing Board‐approved Pay Schedule and  to 

comply with CalPERS requirements. 

Note that separately from approving the Pay Schedule, the ACTA Governing Board approves the salary budget line 

item during each annual budget approval process. 

Discussion: 

ACTA ORGANIZATION 

ACTA’s Organization Chart is shown in Transmittal 1.  

In  January 2024, management  reorganized  the Accounts Payable office  in  response  to a staff departure.   The 

position of Account Payable Supervisor was eliminated, and the duties were distributed among the remaining two 

Accounts Payables Technicians. These  two positions were each promoted  to new positions, namely Accounts 

Payable Lead Person and Accounts Payable Contracts Specialist.  

Aa  previously  presented  to  the  Board,  ACTA’s  management  will  be  hiring  an  Executive  Assistant‐Analyst 

(previously referred to as Production Analyst) to produce data presentation graphics, reports, Governing Board 

meeting packages and support contract administration  

Overall, staffing for ACTA has been reduced by one position. 

   



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #03 

  ２

PAY SCHEDULE 

ACTA management proposes a salary budget and Pay Schedule for 12 positions including three officers and nine 

employees.  The salary ranges for each position have historically been established by comparing the salaries for 

ACTA’s position descriptions with  relatively equivalent City of Los Angeles employee positions.   The proposed 

ACTA Pay Schedule lines are not tied directly to the City of Los Angeles ranges because the City salaries take into 

consideration certain contractually negotiated  terms and conditions  that do not carry over  to employment at 

ACTA. Therefore, the proposed salary ranges for each position also consider consumer price index changes, merit 

raises and the Board’s approved budget for the upcoming fiscal year. The proposed ACTA Pay Schedule applies a 

5.4 percent increase to the Maximum limit for each position. Transmittal 2 shows ACTA’s proposed Pay Schedule 

for ACTA Governing Board approval. 

Budget Impact: 

The approval of ACTA's Pay Schedule will not directly impact ACTA's budget. Salary increases are approved by the 

Governing Board separately through the annual operating budget. 

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA's Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this board report and there are no legal issues at this time. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – ACTA Organization Chart  

Transmittal 2 – ACTA Pay Schedule Effective FY25 

 



Co-General 
Counsel

Governing Board

Michael Leue
CEO

Kevin Scott
CFO

Melinda Tyler
Systems & 

Contracts Manager

Phillip Le
Director Systems, 

Revenue & Finance

Trang Nguyen
Principal 

Accountant

Angela Sarreal
A/P Contracts 

Specialist

Maria Melendres
Board Secretary & 

Dir of Public Affairs

Nick Hour
Administrative 

Manager

Janelle Putman
Senior 

Accountant

Yvette Moore
AP Lead 
Person

IT ServicesPublic Relations
On-call Engineering 

Services

Environmental 
ServicesProperty/ROW

Right-of-Way 
Maintenance

Graham 
Christie

COO

ACTA Officers

ACTA Employees

On-call 
Contractor

Full-time 
Contractor

LEGEND

Vacant
Executive Assistant 

& Analyst

Transmittal 1



  

 

 
 
 
3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200, Long Beach, CA 90806  www.acta.org 

www.acta.org 

Transmittal 2 

 

ACTA Officer and Employee Publicly Available Pay Schedule 

 

 
Effective 07/01/2024 

 
 

FLSA Rate Type Position

Exempt For PERS Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum

Reporting Annual Annual Hourly Hourly 

Yes Monthly Chief Executive Officer $236,896 $363,174 $113.89 $174.60
Yes Monthly Chief Financial Officer $201,266 $308,553 $96.76 $148.34
Yes Monthly Chief Operating Officer $201,266 $308,553 $96.76 $148.34
Yes Monthly Dir. of Systems, Revenue, Finance $171,477 $262,876 $82.44 $126.38
Yes Monthly Principal Accountant $144,737 $221,860 $69.59 $106.66
Yes Monthly Senior Accountant $92,861 $139,710 $44.64 $67.17
Yes Monthly Dir. of Public Affairs $124,602 $190,996 $59.90 $91.83
Yes Monthly Administrative Manager $90,588 $144,538 $43.55 $69.49
Yes Monthly Systems & Contracts Manager $127,465 $199,336 $61.28 $95.83
No Monthly Accounts Payable Lead Person $86,464 $129,759 $41.57 $62.38
No Monthly Accounts Payable Contract Specialist $81,344 $121,854 $39.11 $58.58
No Monthly Executive Assistant - Analyst $75,000 $125,000 $36.06 $60.10

Pay Schedule



  ITEM #04 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE Annual ACTA Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025  

Recommendation: 

Adopt  the  final  Fiscal  Year  2024/2025  (FY25)  ACTA  Operating  Budget  and  appropriate  cash  spending  of 

$109,094,531. 

Discussion: 

The  FY25  cash budget of $109.1 million  includes debt  service of $65.7 million  (consisting of $16.3 million  in 

principal payments and $49.4 million in interest payments) and other expenditures as outlined below. 

 

Cash Spending 

  Budget 

    FY25    FY24 

Debt Service     $65,655,208    $65,461,227 

Administrative Expenses    9,008,868    8,714,093* 

EPA Pass Thru    2,570,162    1,169,835 

Public Benefit Spending    75,000    2,992,850 

Maintenance of Way Expenses    31,785,293    22,767,159 

    $109,094,531    $101,105,164 

The Budget also details non‐cash expenditures, for which no Board appropriation occurs.  These items include: 

 
Non‐Cash Spending 

   FY25    FY24 

Debt Service – Accrued CAB Interest    $83,969,153    $75,607,088 

Depreciation    20,985,164    20,985,164 

   $104,954,317    $96,592,252 

*FY2024 Budget Amended July 13, 2023 



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #04 

  ２

Revenue Summary 

Operating Revenue during FY25  is forecasted to be $108.8 million.   The  largest component of Revenue, $91.7 
million, is from Use Fees and Container Charges as established in the 1998 Use and Operating Agreement (UOA), 
as amended.  There is an additional $17.1 million of Maintenance of Way Charges which are paid by the railroads.  
Rates are  forecast  to escalate by 2.4%, which  is  the maximum annual CPI adjustment provided  in  the Use & 
Operating Agreement (the actual CPI adjustment will be taken from October 2024).  ACTA TEU volumes are based 
on our ACTA Forecast Model ‐Low Scenario results, which show 2% growth for the fiscal year 2025.  

Other Revenue  is comprised of $5.4 million  in  investment  income and  interest earnings  from  the  investment 
portfolio,  and  $3.0  million  in  reimbursements  to  ACTA  from  various  projects  including  Dolores  Crossover 
Construction, POLB Pier B On‐Dock Rail Support Facility Project, Artesia Blvd. Bridge Repairs, 405 Freeway Drain 
Improvements at Dolores Yard, SR‐91 Seismic Retrofit and Guard Rail Improvements, LA Metro I‐105 Express Lanes, 
Anaheim Overhead Bridge Railing Upgrade, Tesoro Refining and Marketing Phase 1 Project, and Oil Release at 
Texaco Slot, as well as income from Pierpass. Income for Public Benefit Includes $0.075 million for the substantially 
completed SR‐47 project. 

Spending Summary 

Administrative  Expenses  overall  remain  consistent  for  the  FY25  budget  compared  to  the  FY24  budget.  The 

expenses include $1.5 million to voluntarily pay down the unfunded accrued liability (UAL) for CalPERS pension, 

offset by a $1.5 million reduction in ACET administrative costs due to the ACET contract ending June 30, 2024.  

The  FY25 budget  also  includes  salary  adjustments/increases of  2.4%  and  a  3% merit  increase pool  for ACTA 

employees. Employee benefit costs reflect the  latest rates as quoted by the benefit providers such as CalPERS 

(health and retirement), Guardian (life insurance, dental insurance, vision insurance), and other benefit providers 

(workers compensation, etc.), as well as additional CalPERS deposits. 

The table on the following page details Administrative Expenses by Expense Type, comparing the FY25 Budget to 

both FY24 Estimated Actual and FY24 Budget. The FY25 Budget proposes a 3.4% increase over the FY24 Budget.   

Some notable information on the FY25 Administrative Expenses is described as follows: 

Salaries and Benefits: ACTA  staff annual compensation adjustment of 2.4% CPI. The net  increase  to FY25 

Budget reflects 5.2% due to the addition of an Analyst position, and establishment of a merit bonus pool at 

3% of total salaries. The FY24 estimated actual is lower than budget due to elimination of the Accounts Payable 

supervisor position as well as the hiring of the Chief Operating Officer that occurred mid‐fiscal year. 

ACET Operating and Professional Services: The ACET contract ends June 30, 2024. ACET duties will be replaced 

by  new  professional  contracts,  on‐call  engineering,  environmental  support,  IT,  and  property  disposition 

services. The FY24 estimated actual is lower than budget because the hiring and use of consultants to replace 

the ACET staff did not occur in FY24. 

 

 



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #04 

  ３

Administrative Expenses by Type 

  FY 2025  FY 2024 
% Change FY 2025 

 Budget to 

  Budget  Est. Actual  Budget 
*Amended 

FY 2024 
Est. Actual 

FY 2024 
Budget 

  Salaries  2,384,011  1,911,317  2,267,008  24.7%  5.2% 
  Benefits  2,652,177  798,843  1,040,759  232.0%  154.8% 

  Office Expenses  547,711  470,814  505,233  16.3%  8.4% 

  Other Management Exp  105,900  42,477  103,900  149.3%  1.9% 

  Information Technologies  164,500  110,646  183,500  48.7%  ‐10.4% 

  Bank and Investment  192,500  173,785  175,000  10.8%  10.0% 

  ACET Operating   ‐  1,098,794  1,545,943  ‐100.0%  ‐100.0% 

  Audit  211,370  181,987  206,128  16.1%  2.5% 
  Legal  680,000  378,280  680,000  79.8%  0.0% 
  Governmental Affairs  90,000  85,000  85,000  5.9%  5.9% 

  Professional Services  1,980,699  313,468  1,921,622  531.9%  3.1% 

  Total Admin Expense  $9,008,868  $5,565,411  $8,714,093  61.9%  3.4% 
 
Pass Through Expenses  include  two  items  for FY25 Budget: 1) Projects and EPA Order  related  to  the Dolores 
Crossover  Construction,  POLB  Pier  B On‐Dock  Rail  Support  Facility  Project, Artesia  Blvd.  Bridge  Repairs,  405 
Freeway Drain Improvements at Dolores Yard, SR‐91 Seismic Retrofit and Guard Rail Improvements, LA Metro I‐
105 Express Lanes, Anaheim Overhead Bridge Railing Upgrade, Tesoro Refining and Marketing Phase 1 Project, 
and Oil  Release  at  Texaco  Slot  are  budgeted  at  $2.6 million,  and  2) ACTA’s  Public  Benefit  Project  Expenses 
budgeted for $0.075 million.  The expenditures incurred by ACTA are fully reimbursed by Union Pacific Railroad, 
Port of Long Beach, Crimson, Caltrans, City of Compton, LA Metro, Tesoro, or other entities for item 1, and Caltrans 
for item 2, through Cooperative Agreements between the agencies. 
 
Port Advances are obligated by the UOA to be paid by the Ports when bond payments exceed revenue (up to 20% 
of total bond payments from each Port). Use Fees & Container Charges during FY25 have been projected at $91.7 
million.  No Port Advances are estimated to be required in FY25. Revenues are also forecast to be sufficient to pay 
the full cost of funding the M&O Reserve Account, Administrative Costs and Financing Fees. 

Following adoption of the FY25 Budget, staff will prepare the final budget document for distribution, and post the 

authorized budget to the ACTA website. 

Adoption of the FY25 Budget, as presented, is recommended. 

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this time. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 ‐ Proposed FY2025 Budget  

Transmittal 2 ‐ Proposed FY2025 Budget Presentation 



Transmittal 1 

Proposed FY2025 Budget 

Presented to ACTA Governing Board 

June 20, 2024 



ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY

FY 2025 FY 2024

Budget
Estimated 

Actual
Budget
*Amended

San Pedro Bay TEUs (000) 11,281 11,059              11,531 

ACTA TEUs (000) 3,054 3,162 2,979 

Revenues
Operating Revenues

   Use Fees & Container Charges 91,721,944$      95,683,754$     87,167,877$      
   Maintenance-of-Way Charges 17,117,816        10,391,693       14,660,656        

     Total Operating Revenues 108,839,760      106,075,447     101,828,533      

Other Revenues 8,508,457          7,050,412         5,798,793          
Total Sources of Funds 117,348,217      113,125,859     107,627,326      

Expenses
  Salaries 2,384,011          1,911,317         2,267,008          
  Benefits 2,652,177          798,843            1,040,759          
  Office Expenses 547,711             470,814            505,233             
  Other Management Expenses 105,900             42,477 103,900             
  Information Technologies 164,500             110,646            183,500             
  Bank and Investment 192,500             173,785            175,000             
  ACET Administrative Support - 1,098,794 1,545,943          
  Audit 211,370             181,987 206,128             
  Legal 680,000             378,280            680,000             
  Government Affairs 90,000 85,000 85,000 
  Professional Services 1,980,699          313,468            1,921,622          

     Total Administrative Expenses 9,008,868          5,565,411         8,714,093          

  Pass Thru Expenses & EPA Order 2,570,162          611,146            1,169,835          

  Expenses for Public Benefit 75,000 338,514            2,992,850          

Total Admin, EPA, and Public Benefit Expenses 11,654,030        6,515,071         12,876,778        

     Total Maintenance-of-Way Expenses 31,785,293        17,869,161       22,767,159        

     Subtotal Admin, EPA, Public Benefit, and MOW Expenses 43,439,323        24,384,232       35,643,937        

  Financing Interest 133,369,362      125,573,315     125,573,315      
  Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 20,985,164        20,985,164       20,985,164        

        Total Operating Expenses 197,793,849      170,942,711     182,202,416      

Income (loss) (80,445,632)$     (57,816,852)$    (74,575,090)$     

06/20/2024 Page 2



Total Use & Container Charges Comparison

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

FY10
Actual

FY11
Actual

FY12
Actual

FY13
Actual

FY14
Actual

FY15
Actual

FY16
Actual

FY17
Actual

FY18
Actual

FY19
Actual

FY20
Actual

FY21
Actual

FY22
Actual

FY23
Actual

FY24
Estimated

Actual

FY25
Budget

$80.5 

$93.2 

$97.3 $99.4

$109.0 
$105.5 $103.6 $102.8 

$112.9 $112.6 

$101.8 

$119.2 

$97.3 $99.7 $95.7 
$91.7 

15.8% 4.4% 2.2% 9.7% -3.2% -1.8%
Millions

06/20/2024

-0.8% 9.8% -0.3% -9.6% 17.1%

Page 3

-18.4% 2.5% -4.0% -4.2%


Chart1

		FY10
Actual

		FY11
Actual

		FY12
Actual

		FY13
Actual

		FY14
Actual

		FY15
Actual

		FY16 
Actual

		FY17
Actual

		FY18  
Actual

		FY19
Actual

		FY20
Actual

		FY21
Actual

		FY22   
Actual

		FY23 
Actual

		FY24
Estimated 
Actual

		FY25
Budget



Fee Revenue

80.5

93.2

97.3

99.4

109

105.5

103.6

102.8

112.9

112.6

101.8

119.2

97.3

99.7

97

91.7



Sheet1

				Fee Revenue		Growth Rate		Column1

		FY10
Actual		$   80.5

		FY11
Actual		$   93.2		15.8%

		FY12
Actual		$   97.3		4.4%

		FY13
Actual		$   99.4		2.2%

		FY14
Actual		$   109.0		9.7%

		FY15
Actual		$   105.5		-3.2%

		FY16 
Actual		$   103.6		-1.8%

		FY17
Actual		$   102.8		-0.8%

		FY18  
Actual		$   112.9		9.8%

		FY19
Actual		$   112.6		-0.3%

		FY20
Actual		$   101.8		-9.6%

		FY21
Actual		$   119.2		17.1%

		FY22   
Actual		$   97.3		-18.4%

		FY23 
Actual		$   99.7		2.5%

		FY24
Estimated 
Actual		$   97.0		-2.7%

		FY25
Budget		$   91.7		-5.5%







Fee

Actual and 

Projected 

Revenues

Month

San Pedro Bay 

Loaded 

Waterborne 

Total

San Pedro 

Bay Loaded 

Waterborne 

Growth Rate

Imputed 

TEUs 

Divided By 

Loaded 

TEUs

ACTA 

Imputed TEUs

ACTA 

Imputed 

TEUs 

Growth 

Rate

Actual 

Loaded 

Rate / TEU

Actual 

Reconciled / 

Forcasted 

Unreconciled

Aug‐23 977,050                ‐3.4% 29.5% 288,180          ‐14.5% 29.18 $8,667,344

Sep‐23 1,023,418             16.7% 29.5% 301,693          ‐3.0% 29.18 $8,476,237

Oct‐23 947,104                12.8% 33.1% 313,864          3.8% 29.18 $8,852,325

Nov‐23 960,511                22.9% 30.8% 295,729          3.3% 29.18 $9,228,805

Dec‐23 923,253                14.5% 34.5% 318,387          21.1% 29.18 $8,763,830

Jan‐24 980,181                16.2% 26.4% 258,768          2.8% 29.18 $9,290,526

Feb‐24 711,654                2.0% 26.4% 187,877          ‐23.0% 29.88 $7,732,063

Mar‐24 847,516                2.0% 26.4% 223,744          ‐11.8% 29.88 $5,613,818

Apr‐24 885,357                2.0% 26.4% 233,734          ‐12.0% 29.88 $6,685,550

May‐24 1,020,431             2.0% 26.4% 269,394          ‐8.1% 29.88 $6,984,056

Jun‐24 930,433                2.0% 26.4% 245,634          ‐14.9% 29.88 $8,049,569

Jul‐24 852,517                2.0% 26.4% 225,064          ‐22.6% 29.88 $7,339,631

FY2024 11,059,424          3,162,069       $95,683,754

Aug‐24 996,591                2.0% 26.4% 263,100          ‐8.7% 29.88 $6,724,995

Sep‐24 1,043,886             2.0% 26.4% 275,586          ‐8.7% 29.88 $7,861,511

Oct‐24 966,046                2.0% 26.4% 255,036          ‐18.7% 29.88 $8,234,595

Nov‐24 979,721                2.0% 26.4% 258,646          ‐12.5% 29.88 $7,620,565

Dec‐24 941,718                2.0% 26.4% 248,614          ‐21.9% 29.88 $7,728,434

Jan‐25 999,784                2.0% 27.6% 275,940          6.6% 30.48 $7,428,651

Feb‐25 725,888                2.0% 27.6% 200,345          6.6% 30.48 $8,410,094

Mar‐25 864,466                2.0% 27.6% 238,593          6.6% 30.48 $6,106,099

Apr‐25 903,064                2.0% 27.6% 249,246          6.6% 30.48 $7,271,812

May‐25 1,040,839             2.0% 27.6% 287,272          6.6% 30.48 $7,596,494

Jun‐25 949,042                2.0% 27.6% 261,935          6.6% 30.48 $8,755,443

Jul‐25 869,567                2.0% 27.6% 240,000          6.6% 30.48 $7,983,250

FY2025 11,280,612          3,054,313       $91,721,944

* Actual Reconciled and Projected Unreconciled

ACTA Revenues *

Projected using ACTA Imputed TEUs
Revenue FY25 Hybrid

San Pedro Bay Loaded TEUs Imputed TEUs

06/20/2024 Page 4



FY2025

Beginning Cash 7/1/2024 - Budget 63,155,405$        

Receipts:

Use Fee & Containers Charges 91,721,944$   

M&O and Other Revenue 22,595,587  

Total Receipts 114,317,531  

Disbursements:

Debt Service Payments 65,655,208  

Operating and M&O Expenses   40,794,161

Total Disbursements   106,449,369

Cash Flow for the Year   7,868,162

Estimated Ending Cash 6/30/2025 $        71,023,567

`

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 
Estimated Cash Flow-Budget

06/20/2024 Page 5



Item #4

FY2025 Proposed Budget

Transmittal 2



Budget Assumptions

2

• Projected revenues based on:

• 2.4% CPI fee increase

• Assumption of 2.0% month over month change in TEU 
volume starting in July 2024 through June 2025 (Low Case)

• Estimate of 25% capture rate by ACTA of Port TEUs

• ACTA staffing level 12 full-time, new position of Executive 
Assistant / Analyst, elimination of Accounts Payable Supervisor 
position

• ACTA staff compensation adjustment 2.4% CPI and merit 
increase of up to 3%

• New consulting agreements will be made for on-call engineer, 
environmental support, IT and property dispositions



Budget Assumptions

• Core ACTA functions include corridor maintenance, 
revenue collection, payment of obligations, and 
servicing of debt

• ACET duties will be replaced by new professional 
contracts, on-call engineering, environmental support, 
IT and property dispositions

• $1.5M to voluntarily paydown the unfunded accrued 
liability (UAL) for CalPERS pension

• M&O budget figures based upon calendar year 2024 
budget approved through the Notice of Mutual 
Agreement process

3



Operating Budget Summary Revenue
(x1000)

FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2024
Budget Estimated 

Actual 
Budget
*Amended

San Pedro Bay TEUs 11,281 11,059
 

11,531
 

ACTA TEUs 3,054 3,162 2,979

Operating Revenue

Use Fees and Container Charges $  91,722 $   95,684 $   87,168

Maintenance-of-Way Charges       17,118 10,392 14,660 

Total Operating Revenue $ 108,840 $   106,076 $  101,828 

Other Revenue      8,508 7,050 5,799

Total Revenue $  117,348 $  113,126 $  107,627 

*FY2024 Budget Amended July 13, 2023 4



Administrative Spending by Expense Type

FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2024
Budget Estimated

 Actual 
Budget
*Amended

Salaries $    2,384,011 $   1,911,317 $     2,267,008 
Benefits 2,652,177 798,843 1,040,759 
Office Expenses 547,711 470,814 505,233 
Other Management Expenses 105,900 42,477 103,900 
Information Technologies 164,500 110,646 183,500 
Bank and Investment 192,500 173,785 175,000 
ACET Administrative Support - 1,098,794 1,545,943 
Audit 211,370 181,987 206,128 
Legal 680,000 378,280 680,000 
Governmental Affairs 90,000 85,000 85,000 
Professional Services 1,980,699 313,468 1,921,622 

Total Administrative Expenses $     9,008,868 $  5,565,411 $  8,714,093 

*FY2024 Budget Amended July 13, 2023 5



Administrative Expense Comparison
Budget FY10 to FY25

06/20/2024

Millions

-$1

$1

$3

$5

$7

$9

$11

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25

$9.0 

$7.1 

$6.0 $5.9 

$4.4 
$4.8 $5.2 

$5.9 
$6.3 

$6.1 

$6.8 $7.1 $6.9 $7.0 

$8.7 
$9.0 

6


Chart1

		FY10

		FY11

		FY12

		FY13

		FY14

		FY15

		FY16

		FY17

		FY18

		FY19

		FY20

		FY21

		FY22

		FY23

		FY24

		FY25



Budget

9

7.1

6

5.9

4.4

4.8

5.2

5.9

6.3

6.1

6.8

7.1

6.9

7

8.7

9



Sheet1

				Budget		Growth Rate between Actuals

		FY10		$   9.0

		FY11		$   7.1		-21.1%

		FY12		$   6.0		-15.5%

		FY13		$   5.9		-1.7%

		FY14		$   4.4		-25.4%

		FY15		$   4.8		9.1%

		FY16		$   5.2		8.3%

		FY17		$   5.9		13.5%

		FY18		$   6.3		6.8%

		FY19		$   6.1		-3.2%

		FY20		$   6.8		11.5%

		FY21		$   7.1		4.4%

		FY22		$   6.9		-2.8%

		FY23		$   7.0		1.4%

		FY24		$   8.7		24.3%

		FY25		$   9.0		3.4%







Administrative Expense Comparison
Budget vs. Actual FY10 to FY24

06/20/2024

Millions

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

$8

$9

$10

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24
Estimated

$8.2 

$5.9 
$5.7 

$4.7 

$4.2 $4.1 
$4.5 

$5.5 $5.4 $5.4 

$5.9 
$5.5 

$4.4 

$5.6 $5.6 

$9.0 

$7.1 

$6.0 $5.9 

$4.4 
$4.8 $5.2 

$5.9 
$6.3 

$6.1 

$6.8 $7.1 $6.9 $7.0 

$8.7 

Actual Budget

7


Chart1

		FY10		FY10

		FY11		FY11

		FY12		FY12

		FY13		FY13

		FY14		FY14

		FY15		FY15

		FY16		FY16

		FY17		FY17

		FY18		FY18

		FY19		FY19

		FY20		FY20

		FY21		FY21

		FY22		FY22

		FY23		FY23

		FY24
Estimated		FY24
Estimated



Actual

Budget

8.2

9

5.9

7.1

5.7

6

4.7

5.9

4.2

4.4

4.1

4.8

4.5

5.2

5.5

5.9

5.4

6.3

5.4

6.1

5.9

6.8

5.5

7.1

4.4

6.9

5.6

7

5.6

8.7



Sheet1

				Actual		Budget		Growth Rate between Actuals

		FY10		$   8.2		$   9.0

		FY11		$   5.9		$   7.1		-28.0%

		FY12		$   5.7		$   6.0		-3.4%

		FY13		$   4.7		$   5.9		-17.5%

		FY14		$   4.2		$   4.4		-10.6%

		FY15		$   4.1		$   4.8		-2.4%

		FY16		$   4.5		$   5.2		9.8%

		FY17		$   5.5		$   5.9		22.2%

		FY18		$   5.4		$   6.3		-1.8%

		FY19		$   5.4		$   6.1		0.0%

		FY20		$   5.9		$   6.8		9.3%

		FY21		$   5.5		$   7.1		-6.8%

		FY22		$   4.4		$   6.9		-20.0%

		FY23		$   5.6		$   7.0		27.3%

		FY24
Estimated		$   5.6		$   8.7		0.0%







  ITEM #05 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer  

Subject:  APPROVE Modifications to ACTA Delegation of Authorities to the Chief Executive 
Officer 

Recommendation:  

Approve the delegation of certain authorities to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and authorization for the CEO 

to delegate said authorities to other ACTA Officers, as necessary, insofar as the following items are concerned. 

The purpose of this recommendation is to conform the authorities previously granted to the CEO. The entirety of 

the Delegation of Authorities has been  included here  so  that  it appears  in one document. The Delegation of 

Authorities  is  presented  as  previously  approved  by  the  Governing  Board  (Nov  18,  1999;  Aug  14,  2003; 

May 27, 2004, Apr  22, 2008) with  the  exception of modifications  shown  as bold  items  below or  items  to be 

removed as strikethrough. 

Background: 

ACTA staff requests modifications to the Delegation of Authorities which has not been updated since November 

1999. The Delegation of Authorities sets limits on the delegated authority granted by the Governing Board to ACTA 

the CEO.  

The Consumer Price Index (CPI) has  increased costs by 180% over the 25 years since the original delegation of 

authority  was  approved  by  the  Governing  Board,  and moreover,  the  CPI  tends  to  understate  increases  in 

engineering and construction costs. The current delegated authority limit of contracts and other actions not to 

exceed $50,000 is recommended to be increased to $100,000.  The current delegated authority limit for purchases 

and other actions not to exceed $100,000 is recommended to be increased to $200,000.  These recommended 

increases  (shown  in  bold  below)  and  certain  authorities  no  longer  needed  (shown  as  strikethrough)  to  be 

incorporated into the Delegation of Authorities are submitted for approval by the Governing Board. 

Delegation of Authority: 

1. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to appoint ACTA officers as Acting‐CEO in the temporary absence of 

the Chief Executive Officer. 

2. Authorize  the  Chief  Executive  Officer  to  establish  a  succession  of  signature  authority.  Succession  of 

authority shall be as follows: CEO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Chief Operating Officer (COO). 

3. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute purchase orders of up to $200,000. 

4. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute professional service contracts of $100,000 or less without 

Board approval. 

5. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to extend the term of Governing Board approved contracts for up to 

one additional twelve‐month period when no additional compensation is involved.  



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #05 

  ２

6. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to hire and/or terminate ACTA employees and/or personnel positions. 

7. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to accept and execute Caltrans right‐of‐way project certifications. 

8. Authorize  the Chief Executive Officer  to accept and consent  to  the  recordation of  real estate deeds or 

grants to or from ACTA made pursuant to authority for such deeds or grants as set forth in Governing Board 

approved agreements. 

9. Authorize  the Chief Executive Officer  to adopt assurances and guarantees  regarding  fair and equitable 

treatment of property owners during the acquisition process. 

10. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to institute legal proceedings on matters relating to right of entry and 

unlawful detainer. 

11. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to establish just compensation based on appraised values. 

12. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute settlement agreements on behalf of ACTA for properties 

being acquired for the project. 

13. Authorize the Chief Executive Office to approve the sale and disposal of Fixtures and Equipment (F&E), not 

exceeding $200,000 in value, per acquisition. 

14. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute rental agreements with property owners for units vacated 

prior to ACTA's acquiring the property. 

15. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to advertise for bids for building demolition and site remediation of 

right‐of‐way acquired for north end grade separations. 

16. Authorize the Chief Executive Office to establish the Relocation Appeals Board and adoption of relocation 

appeals policy entitled "ACTA Grievance Procedures." 

17. Authorize  the Chief Executive Officer  to  submit Draft Relocation Plan  to  the State of California and  to 

provide notice of the plan to affected occupants. 

18. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve relocation claims and relocation payments, not exceeding 

$200,000. 

19. Authorize  the Chief Executive Officer  to approve  loss of business goodwill  settlements, not exceeding 

$200,000. 

20. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to provide notice for utility relocation and execute replacement utility 

licenses and permits necessary for Corridor construction. 

21. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to enter into settlement agreements with fiber optics companies for 

the relocation of fiber optics facilities. 

Budget Impact: 

The approval of ACTA's Delegation of Authorities will not directly impact ACTA's budget.  

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this time. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – Delegation of Authorities  



 1 of 2   

RESOLUTION NO. JPA-24-2 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ACTA DELEGATION OF AUTHORITIES TO 
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

WHEREAS, in December 1996, the City of Los Angeles and the City of Long Beach acting by and 
through their respective Harbor Commissions entered into the Amended and Restated Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Long Beach and the City of Los Angeles to 
be known as the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA); and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 4.E of the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 
(Agreement) names the Officer positions and functions, and provides that such Officers shall be 
appointed by the Governing Board of ACTA; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 18, 1999 the ACTA Delegation of Authorities was originally approved 
by ACTA Governing Board; and 

WHEREAS, in the ensuing 25 years costs to operate the Alameda Corridor have increased by 
nearly double and it is reasonable to increase the limits on Delegated Authorities. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of ACTA does hereby affirm the 
following Delegation of Authority: 
 

1. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to appoint ACTA officers as Acting-CEO in the 
temporary absence of the Chief Executive Officer. 

2. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to establish a succession of signature authority. 
Succession of authority shall be as follows: CEO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Chief 
Operating Officer (COO). 

3. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute purchase orders of up to $200,000. 

4. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute professional service contracts of $100,000 
or less without Board approval. 

5. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to extend the term of Governing Board approved 
contracts for up to one additional twelve-month period when no additional compensation is 
involved.  

6. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to hire and/or terminate ACTA employees and/or 
personnel positions. 

7. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to accept and execute Caltrans right-of-way project 
certifications. 

8. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to accept and consent to the recordation of real estate 
deeds or grants to or from ACTA made pursuant to authority for such deeds or grants as 
set forth in Governing Board approved agreements. 

 
   



 2 of 2   

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT the foregoing resolution was adopted by the ACTA Governing 
Board at its meeting held on this 20th day of June 2024 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 

 
ATTEST: 

  By:       
Maria M. Melendres 
Board Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 

____________________________, 2024 
HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, City Attorney 

 

 

By:   
Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy City Attorney 
ACTA Co-General Counsel 



  ITEM #06 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Graham M. Christie, Chief Operating Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE Agreement No. C0922 for On‐Call Information Technology Services with 
BCA Watson Rice – Western Region, LLP for a term of 4 years and compensation not‐
to‐exceed $2,000,000 

Recommendation:  

Approve the proposed Agreement No. C0922 with BCA Watson Rice – Western Region, LLP (BCAWR) for on‐call 

Information Technology (IT) Services with a compensation amount not‐to‐exceed $2,000,000 and a four‐year term 

and authorize the Chief Executive Officer or his designee to execute said agreement.   

Discussion: 

ACTA's  core  competency  and  capabilities  of  employed  staff  involve  contract  administration,  accounting  and 

accounts payable activities.  ACTA has always relied on contracted services to provide engineering and technical 

support. Prior to the proposed agreement, the Alameda Corridor Engineering Team (ACET), a Joint Venture of four 

engineering firms, provided various engineering services, including IT services. As the expiration date of the ACET 

agreement term approached, the Governing Board directed that the contract for the various services provided by 

ACET should be renewed using competitive selection procedures. 

ACTA  issued a Request  for Proposals  (RFP)  seeking well‐qualified and experienced  firms  to provide on‐call  IT 

services in support of Alameda Corridor operations and maintenance. Services will be provided on an as‐needed 

basis through Contract Task Orders (CTO) issued by ACTA to the Consultant during the term of the Agreement. 

Sample types of IT services that might be requested are listed in Transmittal 1, Agreement Scope of Work.  

Selection Process: 

On April 15, 2024, the IT Services RFP was posted on the ACTA website. Notice of its availability was advertised on 

the web‐based procurement  systems utilized by  the  two ports:  the City of Los Angeles’ Los Angeles Business 

Assistance Virtual Network (LABVN) and Port of Long Beach’s PlanetBids.  Bidder questions were due on April 29, 

2024, and ACTA responses to questions were posted on May 3, 2024. Proposals were due on May 14, 2024. 

Fourteen proposals were received by the due date, as shown in Transmittal 2. A panel consisting of ACTA's CEO, 

CFO, COO and the Director of Systems, Revenue & Finance reviewed and evaluated the written proposals using 

criteria set forth  in the RFP. The evaluation criteria  included: the firm's and any subconsultants’ qualifications; 

project team organization and management; experience and qualifications of proposed personnel; hourly rates; 

and clarity and responsiveness of the proposal. 



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #06 

  ２

The proposals were  ranked based on  the panel’s  review using  the evaluation  criteria. The  top  six  firms were 

selected to interview.  Based on their proposal score combined with their interview performance, BCA Watson 

Rice – Western Region, LLP was unanimously ranked the highest by all panel members. As a result of the final 

scoring of the proposals (see Transmittal 2), it is recommended that the Board approve the proposed agreement 

with BCA Watson Rice – Western Region, LLP, attached in Transmittal 3.  

Budget Impact: 

The contract value for IT services is $2 million for a 4 year term. This budget amount is based on ACTA’s proposed 

“Hybrid Organization,” as presented  to the Governing Board on April 6, 2023, which allows  for a transition of 

services from the ACET agreement to a combination of on‐call services and in‐house staffing. 

Funds of approximately $450,000 for the first year of IT services are included in the FY25 Operating Budget under 

the Professional Services line item plus the Rail and Non‐Rail Support Service in the Operations & Maintenance 

budget. Funds for future fiscal years will be brought to the Governing Board as part of the Operating Budget for 

approval each year.  

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed and approved the proposed Agreement as to form. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – Agreement Scope of Work 

Transmittal 2 – List of Proposing Firms and Scores 

Transmittal 3 – Agreement No. C0922 with BCAWR 



3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200, Long Beach, CA 90806 www.acta.org 

  

SCOPE OF WORK 

ACTA’s Chief Operating Officer will direct the efforts of the Consultant, with oversight by the Chief Executive Officer. 

The following areas are intended to be guidelines as to the type of assignments for which the Consultant will provide 

Information Technology assistance to ACTA. 

• Define architecture and acquire hardware for office computer network

• Manage acquisition of computers, peripherals and software

• Provide computer IT services including user assistance and software upgrades

• Collaborate on website development and manage website maintenance

• Collaborate on phone system implementation and maintenance

• Track ACTA owned assets with inventory database and tags

• Maintain SCADA based emergency phone and ladder alarm system

• Maintain WAN to relay emergency phone and ladder status to ICTF and San Bernardino

• Maintain WAN & server at ACTA’s datacenter in downtown Los Angeles for Automatic Equipment

Identification (AEI) readers

• Maintain IP based cameras at trench’s portals and pump stations

• Advise maintenance contractor on signal and communication system work

• Perform ACTA’s data backup and maintain offsite storage

• Support specialty software such as Sparkrock web-based accounting system

• Maintain access or replace dormant Expedition system

• Be on-call for IT emergency response

Transmitta1 1



Transmittal 2

Structural Design Concepts

Elegant Enterprise-Wide Solutions, Inc.

Jada Systems Inc.

Universal Solutions Group Inc.

Navisite

Linkosys Consulting

Encode Inc.

Cogent Infotech Corporation

Golden Five Consulting

Vastek Group

Knight Communications

Axelliant

BCA Watson Rice – Western Region, LLP 

Stealth ICT

Proposal Team Score

BCA Watson Rice – 

Western Region, LLP 

92

2 83

3 80

4 74

5 68

6 67

Scoring of Shortlisted Proposers

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

On-call IT Support 

List of all Proposers



Transmittal 2

Date:

Firm

Rater 1 Rater 2 Rater 3 Rater 4 Combined Rater 1 Rater 2 Rater 3 Rater 4 Combined Rater 1 Rater 2 Rater 3 Rater 4 Combined Rater 1 Rater 2 Rater 3 Rater 4 Combined Rater 1 Rater 2 Rater 3 Rater 4 Combined

BCA Watson Rice – 

Western Region, LLP 
5 5 4 5 19 4 4 5 4.5 17.5 5 5 5 4.5 19.5 4 4 4 5 17 4 5 5 4 18 91 1

2 5 4 4 4.5 17.5 4 4 4 4.5 16.5 4 4 3 4.5 15.5 4 3 4 5 16 4 4 5 4 17 83 2

3 4 5 4 4 17 4 4 4 4 16 4 4 4 4 16 2 4 3 4 13 4 4 5 4 17 80 3

4 4 4 4 4 16 4 4 3 3 14 3 3 4 3 13 5 3 4 5 17 3 4 3 3 13 74 4

5 4 4 3 4 15 3 4 3 3 13 3 3 3 3 12 4 2 4 3 13 4 3 3 4 14 68 5

6 4 2 3 4 13 2 3 2 4.5 11.5 3 3 2 5 13 5 4 3 5 17 5 2 3 4 14 67 6

SCORES FOR PROPOSING FIRMS

A.    Firm Qualifications

(4)

B.    Project Org & Mgmt

(6)

C.    Staff Qualifications

(5)

D.   Fee Schedule

(3)

E.    Responsiveness

(2)

Average 

Weighted 

Scores

Ranking

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

Project: On-call IT Services

SUMMARIZED SELECTION EVALUATION FORM

FOR ALL SHORTLISTED PROPOSERS

SCORING GUIDELINES:

Rater’s Score:  (Range 0-5) - 0=not included/non responsive; 1=Marginal Abilities, Serious Deficiencies; 2=Adequate with Minor Deficiencies; 3=Adequate, Standard-Acceptable; 4=Well Qualified; 5=Exceptionally Well Qualified.

Weighting Factor:  the weighting factor provides a means of assigning importance to each criterion (1 low through 6 high).

Weighted Score= for each criterion, the Rater’s Score is multiplied by the Weighting Factor to obtain the Weighted Score.

    

Total Score = sum of all Weighted Scores.  Maximum points possible = 100.

Evaluated by:

(All Evaluators Combined) 6/6/2024

Combined Eval Form (2)



 1 

 
 

AGREEMENT NO. C0922 
 

BETWEEN THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND 
BCA WATSON RICE – WESTERN REGION, LLP 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a California Joint Powers 
Authority (“ACTA”) acting by and through its Governing Board (“Board”), and BCA 
WATSON RICE – WESTERN REGION, LLP, a California Limited Liability Partnership, 
whose address is 2355 Crenshaw Blvd., Suite 150, Torrance, California 90501 
(“Consultant”). 
 
 WHEREAS, ACTA requires the professional, expert and technical services of 
Consultant on a temporary or occasional basis to provide ACTA with as-needed on-call 
information technology services; and  
 

WHEREAS, Consultant is an organization that provides these information 
technology services, including, but not limited to those services required by ACTA and, 
by virtue of training and experience, is well-qualified to provide such services to ACTA; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, ACTA does not employ personnel with the required expertise nor is 

it feasible to do so on a temporary or occasional basis; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Incorporation of Recitals 
 
1.1 The recitals to this Agreement above are incorporated herein and made a 

part hereof. 
 
2. Services To Be Performed By Consultant 
 
 2.1 All of the potential services Consultant shall perform for ACTA are set 
forth in Exhibit A hereto and hereinafter shall be referred to as “Scope of Work.” 
 
 2.2 Consultant’s performance of tasks or subtasks shall occur as follows: 
 

 a. ACTA’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) shall issue a written 
Contract Task Order (“CTO”) in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B that 
specifies, without limitation: the task or subtask to be performed; the specific 
services required in connection with such task or subtask; the deliverables 
required in the performance of such task or subtask; the schedule for the 
performance of such task or subtask; authorized personnel who may perform the 
task or subtask; and authorized compensation for such task or subtask.   
 



 2 

 b. Consultant, to reflect its agreement with all the terms of such CTO, 
shall sign, date and return such CTO to ACTA. 
 
 c. Following ACTA’s receipt of the CTO signed by Consultant, ACTA’s 
CEO shall issue a Notice to Proceed in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C that 
has been signed by ACTA’s CEO and that authorizes Consultant to commence 
performance of the services contemplated by such CTO. 

 
 2.3 Consultant acknowledges and agrees that it lacks authority to perform and 
that ACTA’s CEO lacks authority to request the performance of any services outside the 
Scope of Work.  Consultant further acknowledges and agrees that any services it 
performs outside the Scope of Work or a CTO, or in the absence of both a CTO and a 
Notice to Proceed, are performed as a volunteer and shall not be compensable under 
this Agreement. 
 
 2.4 The Scope of Work shall be performed by personnel qualified and 
competent in the sole reasonable discretion of ACTA’s CEO, whether performance is 
undertaken by Consultant or third-parties with whom Consultant has contracted on the 
effective date of this Agreement, whom ACTA’s CEO may subsequently approve in 
writing (“Subconsultants”), or as listed on CTOs.  Obligations of this Agreement, 
whether undertaken by Consultant or Subconsultants, are and shall be the responsibility 
of Consultant.  Consultant acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement creates no 
rights in Subconsultants with respect to ACTA and that obligations that may be owed to 
Subconsultants, including, but not limited to, the obligation to pay Subconsultants for 
services performed, are those of Consultant alone.  Upon ACTA’s CEO’s written 
request, Consultant shall supply ACTA with all agreements between it and its 
Subconsultants. 
 
 2.5 Consultant, at its sole cost and expense, shall furnish all services, 
materials, equipment, subsistence, transportation and all other items necessary to 
perform the Scope of Work.  As between ACTA and Consultant, Consultant is solely 
responsible for any taxes or fees which may be assessed against it or its employees 
resulting from performance of the Scope of Work, whether social security, payroll or 
other, and regardless of whether assessed by the federal government, any state, City, 
or any other governmental entity.  
 

2.6 ACTA’s CEO shall resolve in his sole reasonable discretion any issues or 
questions which may arise during the term of this Agreement as to the quality or 
acceptability of Consultant’s performance of the Scope of Work, the manner of 
performance, the interpretation of direction given to Consultant, the acceptable 
completion of a CTO, and the amount of compensation due.  Upon written notice from 
ACTA’s CEO, Consultant shall assign replacement personnel and/or shall remedy any 
deficient services or work product to his reasonable satisfaction and at Consultant’s sole 
cost and expense.  Compliance with the requirements of this Section 2.6 is a condition 
to payment by ACTA of compensation to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
 2.7 Consultant's representative responsible for administering this Agreement, 
Xavier Motley (“Project Manager”), shall not be changed without ACTA’s CEO’s written 
approval.  ACTA’s CEO may, for any reason in his sole reasonable discretion, require 
Consultant to substitute a new Project Manager.  If ACTA requests such a substitution, 
the substitute Project Manager shall expend whatever time and costs necessary to 



 3 

become familiar with the services provided and any portions of the Scope of Work 
already performed at Consultant’s sole cost and expense. 
 
 2.8 If the law requires Consultant, in performing the Scope of Work, to follow a 
different standard of care than the ordinary standard of care applied to a reasonable 
person, Consultant shall perform such services with the degree of diligence, skill, 
judgment, and care applicable to Consultant's profession (“professional standard”).  
Consultants not required to follow a professional standard shall exercise the degree of 
care required of ordinary persons.   
 
 2.9 For portions of the Scope of Work to be performed on a time and material 
basis, Consultant shall assign personnel, whether employees or Subconsultants, with 
the lowest applicable hourly rate who are fully competent to provide the services 
required.  If Consultant finds it necessary to have any portion of the Scope of Work, 
which this Section 2.9 would require to be performed by personnel at a lower rate, to be 
performed by personnel at a higher rate, Consultant shall, nevertheless, invoice ACTA 
at the lower rate. 
 
 2.10 Consultant shall promptly consider and implement, to his reasonable 
satisfaction, any written comments of ACTA’s CEO. 
 
 2.11 Consultant shall review information provided by ACTA. Any such 
information reasonably believed by Consultant to be inaccurate, incomplete or 
inapplicable shall be brought promptly to the attention of ACTA’s CEO in writing. 
 
 2.12 Consultant shall perform the Scope of Work as expeditiously as possible 
and at the time or times required by ACTA’s CEO.  Time is of the essence in the 
performance of the Scope of Work.  Consultant's failure to conform to the schedule set 
forth in a CTO shall entitle ACTA to have services completed by others, shall obligate 
Consultant to pay ACTA ACTA’s cost to undertake completion of such services, and 
shall authorize ACTA to withhold such amounts from any payments otherwise due to 
Consultant.  Consultant's failure to timely perform in accordance with the schedule set 
forth in a CTO shall result in economic losses to the ACTA, including, but not limited to, 
the timely bidding and awarding of contracts, completion of any project in connection 
with which Consultant’s services are rendered and the use of such project by ACTA, the 
users of the Alameda Corridor and the public. 
 
3. Services To Be Performed By ACTA 
 
 3.1 ACTA shall provide Consultant, upon its request, all documents and 
papers in possession of ACTA which may lawfully be supplied to Consultant which, in 
the sole reasonable discretion of ACTA’s CEO, are necessary for Consultant to perform 
its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 3.2 Consultant shall provide ACTA’s CEO with reasonable advance written 
notice if it requires access to any premises under the control of ACTA.  Subsequent 
access rights, if any, shall be granted to Consultant at the sole reasonable discretion of 
ACTA’s CEO, specifying conditions Consultant must satisfy in connection with such 
access.  Consultant acknowledges that such premises may be occupied or used by 
railroad companies, tenants or contractors of ACTA and that access rights granted by 
ACTA to Consultant shall be consistent with any such occupancy or use. 



 4 

 
 3.3 ACTA shall not be obligated to provide information and/or services except 
as specified in this Agreement. 
 
4. Effective Date and Term 
 

4.1 The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date of its execution by 
ACTA’s CEO or his designee upon authorization of the Board.   
 
 4.2 Commencing on the Agreement’s effective date, this Agreement shall be 
in full force and effect until the earlier of the following occurs: 

 
1.  Four (4) years have lapsed from the effective date of this Agreement; 

 
  or 
 

2. ACTA’s Board, in its sole discretion, terminates and cancels all or part 
of this Agreement pursuant to Section 6.  

 
5. Compensation. 
 

5.1 For the full and satisfactory performance of the Scope of Work, ACTA 
shall pay Consultant and Consultant shall accept a sum not to exceed Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000).   The total sum payable under this Agreement shall be determined 
by Contract Task Orders and Consultant acknowledges that final compensation may not 
reach the maximum sum allowed for herein.   

 
5.2 Compensation payable under this Agreement for payment for labor, travel, 

per diem, materials, supplies, transportation, and all other direct and indirect costs and 
expenses incurred by Consultant (“Expenses”) are listed in Exhibit D.  No markups or 
premiums shall be applied to services performed by Subconsultants unless Exhibit D 
expressly so allows.   

 
5.3 Compensation payable under this Agreement shall be on a (1) Fixed Fee, 

(2) Time and Materials, (3) Equal Payment or (4) any combination of the three, as may 
be more particularly specified in a Contract Task Order.   

 
a. Fixed Fee.  Lump sum compensation for satisfactory performance as may 

be specified in a particular Contract Task Order. 
 
b. Time and Materials Fee.  Consultant shall be paid based on the actual 

time expended in the performance of tasks or subtasks using the applicable rates set 
forth in Exhibit D.  Consultant will also be reimbursed for materials and other out-of-
pocket expenses at cost.  The rates identified in Exhibit D state the maximum rates 
Consultant shall charge under this Agreement.  No premium rates, including, but not 
limited to, overtime or hazardous duty premiums, shall be charged unless authorized in 
Exhibit D. 

 
c. Equal Payment Fee.  Consultant shall be paid equal amounts over time 



 5 

throughout a particular Contract Task Order, up to the stated fixed amount. 
 
5.4 Each month during the term of this Agreement, as a prerequisite to 

payment for services, Consultant shall submit a written invoice to ACTA for services 
performed during the prior month, accompanied by such records and receipts as may 
be required by Section 5.6.  If payments are to be based on the performance of 
established milestones, Consultant shall bill as each milestone is completed, but not 
more often than once a month. 

 
Consultant shall submit one (1) original and one (1) copy of each such invoice for 

payment in the format that contains the information specified in Exhibit E, and that 
includes the following certification: 

 
“I certify under penalty of perjury that the above invoice is true and 
just, in accordance with the terms of Agreement No. ______, that 
payment of this invoice has not been received and that none of the 
items contained in the invoice have been submitted to any other 
agency.  
 __________________________________” 

(signed) 
 

5.5 Where Consultant employs Subconsultants under this Agreement, 
Consultant shall submit to ACTA, with each monthly invoice, a Monthly Subconsultant 
Monitoring Report Form (Exhibit F) listing SBE/VSBE/MBE/WBE/DVBE/OBE amounts.  
Consultant shall provide an explanation for any item that does not meet or exceed the 
anticipated participation levels for this Agreement, with specific plans and 
recommendations for improved Subconsultant utilization.  Invoices will not be paid 
without a completed Monthly Subconsultant Monitoring Report Form.   
 

5.6 Consultant shall submit supporting documents with each invoice, which 
may include, but not be limited to, provider invoices, receipts, payrolls, and time sheets.  
Consultant is not required to submit support for direct costs items of $25 or less.  All 
invoices are subject to audit. 
 

5.7 All sums due and payable to Consultant shall be paid as soon as, in the 
ordinary course of ACTA business, the same may be reviewed and approved.   

 
For payment and processing, all invoices shall be mailed to the 
following address: 
 
Accounts Payable Department 
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 
3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200 
Long Beach, California 90806 

 
In addition to, or in lieu of, mailing invoices per the above instructions, 

Consultant may email invoices to accountspayable@acta.org, and Consultant shall be 
responsible for confirming receipt of emailed invoices.  ACTA shall not be responsible 
for invoices incorrectly emailed or not received due to technical issues, regardless of the 

mailto:accountspayable@acta.org


 6 

source of such issues. 
 
6. Termination 
 
 6.1 The Board, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to terminate and 
cancel all or any part of this Agreement for any reason upon ACTA’s CEO giving the 
Consultant ten (10) days’ advance, written notice of the Board’s election to cancel and 
terminate this Agreement.  It is agreed that any Agreement entered into shall not limit 
the right of ACTA to hire additional consultants or perform the services described in this 
Agreement either during or after the term of this Agreement. 
 
 6.2 Upon receipt of such written notice, Consultant shall cease the 
performance of the Scope of Work.  Consultant shall be entitled to compensation only 
for services actually performed prior to such termination.  ACTA’s CEO, in his sole 
reasonable discretion, shall determine the amount of services actually performed and 
shall allocate a portion of the total compensation due Consultant accordingly. 
 
 6.3 If Board so terminates this Agreement, Consultant shall deliver all 
drawings, specifications, plans, reports, studies, calculations, estimates, documents and 
other work product produced pursuant to this Agreement to ACTA in an organized, 
usable form with all items properly labeled to the degree of detail specified by ACTA’s 
CEO.  No compensation shall be due Consultant until it complies with the requirements 
of this paragraph. 
 
 6.4 Pursuant to Section 5 of ACTA’s Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement, ACTA shall be restricted in its powers in the same manner as the 
City of Los Angeles is restricted in its exercise of similar powers.  Therefore, this 
Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Los Angeles City Charter Section 320 
which precludes ACTA from making any expenditure of funds or incurring any liability, 
including contractual commitments, in excess of the amount appropriated therefor. 
 

The Board, in awarding this Agreement, is expected to appropriate sufficient 
funds to meet the estimated expenditure of funds through June 30 of the current fiscal 
year and to make further appropriations in each succeeding fiscal year during the life of 
the Agreement. However, the Board is under no legal obligation to do so. 
 

ACTA, its board, officers, and employees are not bound by the terms of this 
Agreement or obligated to make payment thereunder in any fiscal year in which the 
Board does not appropriate funds therefore.  The Consultant is not entitled to any 
compensation in any fiscal year in which funds have not been appropriated for the 
Agreement by the Board. 
 

Although the Consultant is not obligated to perform any work under the 
Agreement in any fiscal year in which no appropriation for the Agreement has been 
made, the Consultant agrees to resume performance of the work required by the 
Agreement on the same terms and conditions for a period of sixty (60) days after the 
end of the fiscal year if an appropriation therefore is approved by the Board within that 
60-day period.  The Consultant is responsible for maintaining all insurance and bonds 
during this 60-day period until the appropriation is made; however, such extension of 
time is not compensable. 
 



 7 

If in any subsequent fiscal year funds are not appropriated by the Board for the 
work required by the Agreement, the Agreement shall be terminated.  However, such 
termination shall not relieve the parties of liability for any obligation previously incurred. 
 
7. Recordkeeping and Audit Rights 
 

7.1 Consultant shall keep and maintain full, complete and accurate books of 
accounts and records of the services performed under this Agreement in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.  Consultant’s books 
and records shall be readily accessible to and open for inspection and copying at the 
premises by ACTA, its auditors or other authorized representatives.  Notwithstanding 
any other provision of this Agreement, failure to do so shall constitute a conclusive 
waiver of any right to compensation for such services as are otherwise compensable 
hereunder.  Such books and records shall be maintained by Consultant for a period of 
three (3) years after completion of services to be performed under this Agreement or 
until all disputes, appeals, litigation or claims arising from this Agreement have been 
resolved. 
 

7.2 During the term of this Agreement, ACTA may audit, review and copy any 
and all writings (as that term is defined in Section 250 of the California Evidence Code) 
of Consultant and Subconsultants arising from or related to this Agreement or 
performance of the Scope of Work, whether such writings are (a) in final form or not, 
(b) prepared by Consultant, Subconsultants or any individual or entity acting for or on 
behalf of Consultant or a Subconsultant, and (c) without regard to whether such writings 
have previously been provided to ACTA.  Consultant shall be responsible for obtaining 
access to and providing writings of Subconsultants.  Consultant shall provide ACTA at 
Consultant's sole cost and expense a copy of all such writings within fourteen (14) 
calendar days of a written request by ACTA.  ACTA's right shall also include inspection 
at reasonable times of the Consultant's office or facilities which are engaged in the 
performance of the Scope of Work.  Consultant shall, at no cost to ACTA, furnish 
reasonable facilities and assistance for such review and audit.  Consultant's failure to 
comply with this Section 7.2 shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and 
shall entitle ACTA to withhold any payment due under this Agreement until such breach 
is cured. 

 
8. Consultant Is An Independent Contractor 
 

Consultant, in the performance of the Scope of Work, is an independent 
contractor and not an agent or employee of ACTA.  Consultant shall not represent itself 
as an agent or employee of ACTA and shall have no power to bind ACTA in contract or 
otherwise. 
 
9. Indemnification 
 

Except for the sole negligence or willful misconduct of ACTA, its Board or any of 
its officers, agents, employees, assigns and successors in interest, Consultant 
undertakes and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless ACTA, its Board and 
any of its officers, agents, employees, assigns, and successors in interest from and 
against all suits and causes of action, arbitration proceedings, administrative 



 8 

proceedings, claims, losses, demands and expenses, including, but not limited to, 
attorney's fees (both in house and outside counsel) and cost of litigation (including all 
actual litigation costs incurred by ACTA, including but not limited to, costs of experts 
and consultants), damages or liability of any nature whatsoever, for death or injury to 
any person, including Consultant’s employees and agents, or damage or destruction of 
any property of either party hereto or of third parties, arising in any manner by reason of 
the negligent acts, errors, omissions or willful misconduct incident to the performance of 
this Agreement by Consultant or its subcontractors of any tier. Rights and remedies 
available to ACTA under this provision are cumulative of those provided for elsewhere 
in this Agreement and those allowed under the laws of the United States and the State 
of California.  

 
10. Insurance 
 
 10.1 Insurance procured by Consultant on Behalf of Consultant 
 
 In addition to and not as a substitute for, or limitation of, any of the indemnity 
obligations imposed by Section 9, and as a condition precedent to the effectiveness of 
this Agreement, Consultant shall procure and maintain at its sole cost and expense and 
keep in force at all times during the term of this Agreement the following insurance: 
 
 (a) Commercial General Liability Insurance 
 

Commercial general liability insurance covering personal and advertising injury, 
bodily injury, and property damage providing contractual liability, independent 
contractors, products and completed operations, and premises/operations coverage 
written by an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of California 
rated VII, A- or better in Best’s Insurance Guide (or an alternate guide acceptable to 
ACTA if Best’s is not available) within Consultant’s normal limits of liability but not less 
than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for injury or claim. Said 
limits shall provide first dollar coverage except that ACTA’s CEO may permit a self-
insured retention or self-insurance in those cases where, in his judgment, such retention 
or self-insurance is justified by the net worth of Consultant.  The retention or self-
insurance provided shall provide that any other insurance maintained by ACTA shall be 
excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.  In all cases, regardless 
of any deductible or retention, said insurance shall contain a defense of suits provision 
and a severability of interest clause. Where Consultant’s operations involve work within 
50 feet of railroad track, Consultant’s Commercial General Liability coverage shall also 
have the railroad exclusion deleted. Each policy shall name ACTA, its Board, officers, 
agents and employees as Primary additional insureds. 
 

(b) Automobile Liability Insurance 
 

Automobile liability insurance written by an insurance company authorized to do 
business in the State of California rated VII, A- or better in Best’s Insurance Guide (or 
an alternate guide acceptable to ACTA if Best’s is not available) within Consultant’s 
normal limits of liability but not less than Five hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) 
covering damages, injuries or death resulting from each accident or claim arising out of 
any one claim or accident. Said insurance shall protect against claims arising from 
actions or operations of the insured, or by its employees.  Coverage shall contain a 



 9 

defense of suits provision and a severability of interest clause. Each policy shall name 
ACTA, its Board, officers, agents and employees as Primary additional insureds. 
 

(c) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
 
Consultant shall certify that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the 

California Labor code which requires every employer to be insured against liability for 
Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that Code, and that Consultant shall comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the tasks under this Agreement.  Coverage for claims 
under U.S. Longshore and Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act, if required under 
applicable law, shall be included.  Consultant shall submit Workers’ Compensation 
policies whether underwritten by the state insurance fund or private carrier, which 
provide that the public or private carrier waives its right of subrogation against ACTA in 
any circumstance in which it is alleged that actions or omissions of ACTA contributed to 
the accident.  Such Worker’s Compensation and occupational disease requirements 
shall include coverage for all employees of Consultant, and for all employees of any 
subcontractor or other vendor retained by Consultant. 

 
 (d) Professional Liability Insurance 

 
Consultant is required to provide Professional Liability insurance with respect to 

negligent or wrongful acts, errors or omissions, or failure to render services in 
connection with the professional services to be provided under this Agreement.  This 
insurance shall protect against claims arising from professional services of the insured, 
or by its employees, agents, or contractors, and include coverage (or no exclusion) for 
contractual liability. 
 

Consultant certifies that it now has professional liability insurance in the amount 
of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), which covers work to be performed pursuant to this 
Agreement and that it will keep such insurance or its equivalent in effect at all times 
during performance of said Agreement and until two (2) years following the completed 
term of the Agreement.   
 

(e) Technology Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance 
 

Consultant is required to provide Technology Errors and Omissions Liability 
Insurance with respect to negligent or wrongful acts, errors or omissions, in rendering or 
failing to render computer or information technology services or technology products in 
connection with the professional services to be provided under this Agreement.  This 
insurance policy shall include coverage for Privacy and Network Security and protect 
against claims arising from all products and services of the insured, or by its employees, 
agents, or contractors, and include coverage (or no exclusion) for contractual liability.  
The limits disclosed herein shall neither increase nor decrease Consultant’s liability as 
defined elsewhere in this Agreement. 
 

Consultant certifies that it now has Technology Errors and Omissions Liability 
Insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim/aggregate 
including Notification Costs, which shall cover the work to be performed pursuant to this 
Agreement and that it will keep such insurance or its equivalent in effect at all times 



 10 

during performance of said Agreement and until two (2) years following the completed 
term of the Agreement.   
 
 10.2 Insurance Procured by Consultant on Behalf of ACTA 

 
In addition to and not as a substitute for, or limitation of, any of the indemnity 

obligations imposed by Section 9, and where Consultant is required to name ACTA, its 
Board, officers, agents and employees as Primary additional insureds on any insurance 
policy required by this Agreement, Consultant shall cause ACTA to be named as an 
additional insured on all policies it procures in connection with this Section 10.  
Consultant shall cause such additional insured status to be reflected in the original 
policy or by additional insured endorsement (CG 2010 or equivalent) substantially as 
follows: 

 
"Notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in the policy to which this 

endorsement is attached, or any endorsement or certificate now or hereafter attached 
hereto, it is agreed that the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority, its Board, their 
officers, agents and employees, are additional insureds hereunder, and that coverage is 
provided for all contractual obligations, operations, uses, occupations, acts and 
activities of the insured under Agreement No. C0922, and under any amendments, 
modifications, extensions or renewals of said Agreement regardless of where such 
contractual obligations, operations, uses, occupations, acts and activities occur. 
 

"The coverage provided by the policy to which this endorsement is attached is 
primary coverage and any other insurance carried by ACTA is excess coverage; 
 

"In the event of one of the named insured’s incurring liability to any other of the 
named insureds, this policy shall provide protection for each named insured against 
whom claim is or may be made, including claims by other named insureds, in the same 
manner as if separate policies had been issued to each named insured.  Nothing 
contained herein shall operate to increase the company's limit of liability; and 
 

"Notice of occurrences or claims under the policy shall be made to ACTA’s CEO 
with copies sent to ACTA’s Co-General Counsel at the following addresses: 1) Office of 
the Long Beach City Attorney, 411 West Ocean Boulevard, 9th Floor, Long Beach, 
California 90802, and 2) Office of the Los Angeles City Attorney, 425 S. Palos Verdes 
Street, San Pedro, California, 90731." 
 
 10.3 Required Features of Coverages 
 
 Insurance procured by Consultant in connection with this Section 10 shall include 
the following features: 
 
 (a) Acceptable Evidence and Approval of Insurance 
 

Consultant’s insurance broker or agent shall submit to ACTA the appropriate 
proof of insurance on Consultant’s behalf. 

 
Upon request by ACTA, Consultant shall furnish full copies of certified policies of 

any insurance policy required herein.  This obligation is intended to, and shall, survive 



 11 

the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 
 

(b) Carrier Requirements 
 

All insurance which Consultant is required to provide pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be placed with insurance carriers authorized to do business in the State of 
California and which are rated A-, VII or better in Best’s Insurance Guide.  Carriers 
without a Best’s rating shall meet comparable standards in another rating service 
acceptable to ACTA. 
 

(c) Notice of Cancellation 
 
  For each insurance policy described above, Consultant shall give a 10-day 
prior notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage for nonpayment of premium, and a 
30-day prior notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage for any other reason, by 
written notice via registered mail and addressed to ACTA as set forth herein. 

 
(d) Modification of Coverage 

 
ACTA’s CEO, at his sole reasonable discretion, based upon recommendation of 

independent insurance consultants to ACTA, may increase or decrease amounts and 
types of insurance coverage required hereunder at any time during the term hereof by 
giving ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to Consultant. 

 
(e) Renewal of Policies 

 
At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any policy required by this 

Agreement, Consultant shall renew or extend such policy in accordance with the 
requirements of this Agreement and direct their insurance broker or agent to submit to 
the ACTA a renewal endorsement or renewal certificate or, if new insurance has been 
obtained, evidence of insurance as specified above.  If Consultant neglects or fails to 
secure or maintain the insurance required above, ACTA’s CEO may, at his own option 
but without any obligation, obtain such insurance to protect ACTA’s interests.  The cost 
of such insurance shall be deducted from the next payment due Consultant.  
 (f) Limits of Coverage 
 
 If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums required by this 
Agreement, ACTA requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 
maintained by Consultant.  Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to ACTA. 
 

10.4 Accident Reports 
 

Consultant shall report in writing to ACTA’s CEO within fifteen (15) calendar days 
after it, its officers or managing agents have knowledge of any accident or occurrence 
involving death of or injury to any person or persons, or damage in excess of Five 
Hundred Dollars ($500.00) to property, occurring upon any Alameda Corridor property if 
Consultant’s officers, agents or employees are involved in such an accident or 
occurrence.  Such report shall contain to the extent available (1) the name and address 
of the persons involved, (2) a general statement as to the nature and extent of injury or 
damage, (3) the date and hour of occurrence, (4) the names and addresses of known 



 12 

witnesses, and (5) such other information as may be known to Consultant, its officers or 
managing agents. 
 
11. Personal Services Agreement 
 
 Consultant acknowledges that it has been selected to perform the Scope of Work 
because of its experience, qualifications and expertise.  Any assignment or other 
transfer of this Agreement or any part hereof shall be void provided, however, that 
Consultant may permit Subconsultant(s) to perform portions of the Scope of Work in 
accordance with Section 2.3.  All Subconsultants whom Consultant utilizes, however, 
shall be deemed to be its agents.  Subconsultants’ performance of the Scope of Work 
shall not be deemed to release Consultant from its obligations under this Agreement or 
to impose any obligation on ACTA to such Subconsultant(s) or give the 
Subconsultant(s) any rights against ACTA. 
 
12. Confidentiality 
 
 Consultant shall not disclose any proprietary or confidential information of ACTA 
to any third party or parties during or after the term of this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of ACTA.  The data, documents, reports, or other materials which 
contain information relating to the review, documentation, analysis and evaluation of the 
Scope of Work and any recommendations made by Consultant relative thereto shall be 
considered confidential and shall not be reproduced, altered, used or disseminated by 
Consultant or its employees or agents in any manner except and only to the extent 
necessary in the performance of the work under this Agreement.  In addition, Consultant 
is required to safeguard such information from access by unauthorized personnel. 
 
13. Affirmative Action 
 
 Consultant shall not discriminate in its employment practices against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of employee’s or applicant’s race, 
religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, sexual orientation, disability, marital status, 
domestic partner status, or medical condition.  All subcontracts awarded shall contain a 
like nondiscrimination provision. 
 
14. Small/Very Small Business Enterprise Program 
  
 It is the policy of ACTA to provide Small Business Enterprises (SBE), Very Small 
Business Enterprises (VSBE), and Minority-Owned, Women-Owned, Disabled Veteran 
Business Enterprises and all Other Business Enterprises (MBE/WBE/DVBE/OBE) an 
equal opportunity to participate in the performance of all ACTA contracts in all areas 
where such contracts afford such participation opportunities.  Consultant shall assist 
ACTA in implementing this policy and shall use its best efforts to afford the opportunity 
for SBEs, VSBEs, MBEs, WBEs, DVBEs, and OBEs to achieve participation in 
subcontracts where such participation opportunities present themselves and attempt to 
ensure that all available business enterprises, including SBEs, VSBEs, MBEs, WBEs, 
DVBEs, and OBEs, have equal participation opportunities which might be presented 
under this Agreement.  See Exhibit G. 
 
15. Conflict of Interest 
 
 It is hereby understood and agreed that the parties to this Agreement have read 



 13 

and are aware of the provisions of Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of 
the California Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and 
employees, as well as the Conflict of Interest Code of ACTA.  All parties hereto agree 
that they are unaware of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or 
employee of ACTA relating to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this Agreement, it is further understood and agreed that if such financial interest does 
exist at the inception of this Agreement, ACTA may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof. 
 
16. Compliance with Applicable Laws 
 
 Consultant’s activities under this Agreement, including its performance of the 
Scope of Work, shall comply with all federal, state, municipal, and local laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders.   
  
17. Trademarks, Copyrights and Patents 
 

Consultant shall promptly and fully inform ACTA’s CEO in writing of any patents, 
trademarks or copyrights related to services provided under this Agreement or patent 
trademark or copyright disputes, existing or potential, which Consultant has knowledge 
of, relating to any idea, design, method, material, equipment or other matter connected 
to this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to save, keep, hold harmless, protect and 
indemnify ACTA and any of its officers or agents from any damages, cost, or expenses 
in law or equity from infringement of any patent, trademark, service mark or copyright of 
any person or persons, or corporations in consequence of the use by ACTA of any 
materials supplied by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
18. Proprietary Information 
 

Writings, as that term is defined in Section 250 of the California Evidence Code 
(including, without limitation, drawings, specifications, estimates, reports, records, 
reference material, data, charts, documents, renderings, computations, computer tapes 
or disks, submittals and other items of any type whatsoever, whether in the form of 
writing, figures or delineations), which are obtained, generated, compiled or derived in 
connection with this Agreement (collectively hereafter referred to as "property"), are 
owned by ACTA as soon as they are developed, whether in draft or final form.  ACTA 
has the right to use or permit the use of property and any ideas or methods represented 
by such property for any purpose and at any time without compensation other than that 
provided in this Agreement.  Consultant hereby warrants and represents that ACTA at 
all times owns rights provided for in this section free and clear of all third-party claims 
whether presently existing or arising in the future, whether or not presently known. 
Consultant need not obtain for ACTA the right to use any idea, design, method, 
material, equipment or other matter which is the subject of a valid patent, unless such 
patent is owned by Consultant or one of its employees, or its Subconsultant or the 
Subconsultant's employees, in which case such right shall be obtained without 
additional compensation.  Whether or not Consultant's initial proposal or proposals 
made during this Agreement are accepted by ACTA, it is agreed that all information of 
any nature whatsoever connected with the Scope of Work, regardless of the form of 
communication, which has been or may be given by Consultant, its Subconsultants or 
on either’s behalf, whether prior or subsequent to this Agreement becoming effective, to 
the ACTA, its Board, officers, agents or employees, is not given in confidence.  



 14 

Accordingly, ACTA or its designees may use or disclose such information without 
liability of any kind, except as may arise under valid patents. 
 
19. Royalty-Free License 
 

If research or development is furnished in connection with this Agreement and if, 
in the course of such research or development, patentable work product is produced by 
Consultant, its officers, agents, employees, or Subconsultants, ACTA shall have, 
without cost or expense to it, an irrevocable, non-exclusive royalty-free license to make 
and use, itself or by anyone on its behalf, such work product in connection with any 
activity now or hereafter engaged in or permitted by ACTA.  Upon ACTA's request, 
Consultant, at its sole cost and expense, shall promptly furnish or obtain from the 
appropriate person a form of license satisfactory to ACTA.  It is expressly understood 
and agreed that, as between ACTA and Consultant, the referenced license shall arise 
for ACTA's benefit immediately upon the production of the work product, and is not 
dependent on the written license specified above.  ACTA may transfer such license to 
its successors in the operation or ownership of any real or personal property now or 
hereafter owned or operated by ACTA. 
 
20. ACTA’s Disclosure Obligations 
 

Consultant acknowledges that ACTA is subject to laws, rules and/or regulations 
generally requiring it to disclose records upon request, which laws, rules and/or 
regulations include, but are not limited to, the California Public Records Act (California 
Government Code Sections 6250 et seq.) (“Disclosure Laws”). 
 
21. Notices 
 
 In all cases where written notice is to be given under this Agreement, service 
shall be deemed sufficient if said notice is deposited in the United States mail, 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, and postage prepaid.  When so 
given, such notice shall be effective from the date of mailing of the same.  For the 
purpose hereof, unless otherwise provided by notice in writing from the respective 
parties, notice to ACTA shall be addressed to its Chief Executive Officer, Alameda 
Corridor Transportation Authority, 3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200, Long Beach, 
California 90806, and notice to Consultant shall be addressed to it at the address set 
forth above. Nothing herein contained shall preclude or render inoperative service of 
such notice in the manner provided by law. 

22. Construction of Agreement 

This Agreement shall not be construed against the party preparing the same, 
shall be construed without regard to the identity of the person who drafted such and 
shall be construed as if all parties had jointly prepared this Agreement and it shall be 
deemed their joint work product; each and every provision of this Agreement shall be 
construed as though all of the parties hereto participated equally in the drafting hereof; 
and any uncertainty or ambiguity shall not be interpreted against any one party.  As a 
result of the foregoing, any rule of construction that a document is to be construed 
against the drafting party shall not be applicable. 

 



 15 

23. Titles and Captions 

The parties have inserted the section titles in this Agreement only as a matter of 
convenience and for reference, and the section titles in no way define, limit, extend or 
describe the scope of this Agreement or the intent of the parties in including any 
particular provision in this Agreement. 

24. Modification in Writing 

This Agreement shall not be amended, nor any provision or breach hereof 
waived, except in writing signed by the parties which expressly refers to this Agreement.  
Any such modifications are subject to all applicable approval processes required by 
ACTA. 

25. Waiver 

A failure of any party to this Agreement to enforce the Agreement upon a breach 
or default shall not waive the breach or default or any other breach or default.  All 
waivers shall be in writing. 

26. Governing Law/Venue 
 
 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of California, without reference to the conflicts of law, rules and principles of 
such State.  The parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with 
this Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the State or Federal courts 
located in the County of Los Angeles, State of California, in the judicial district required 
by court rules. 

27. Severability 

Should any part, term, condition or provision of this Agreement be declared or 
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or incapable of 
being enforced by any rule of law or public policy, the validity of the remaining parts, 
terms, conditions or provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 
such invalid, illegal or unenforceable part, term, condition or provision shall be treated 
as follows: (a) if such part, term, condition or provision is immaterial to this Agreement, 
then such part, term, condition or provision shall be deemed not to be a part of this 
Agreement; or (b) if such part, term, condition or provision is material to this Agreement, 
then the parties shall revise the part, term, condition or provision so as to comply with 
the applicable law or public policy and to effect the original intent of the parties as 
closely as possible. 

28. Integrated Agreement 

This Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement between the 
parties hereto with respect to the matters referred to herein.  No other representations, 
covenants, undertakings, or prior or contemporaneous agreements, oral or written, 
regarding such matters which are not specifically contained, referenced, and/or 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference shall be deemed in any way to exist or 
bind any of the parties.  Each party acknowledges that it has not been induced to enter 



 16 

into the Agreement and has not executed the Agreement in reliance upon any promises, 
representations, warranties or statements not contained, referenced, and/or 
incorporated into the Agreement.  THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS 
AGREEMENT IS INTENDED TO BE, AND IS, AN INTEGRATED AGREEMENT. 

29. Exhibits; Sections 

All exhibits to which reference is made in this Agreement are deemed 
incorporated in this Agreement, whether or not actually attached.  To the extent the 
terms of an exhibit conflict with or appear to conflict with the terms of the body of the 
Agreement, the terms of the body of the Agreement shall control. References to 
sections are to sections of this Agreement unless stated otherwise. 
 
30. Counterparts and Electronic Signatures 

  
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument.  

 
The use of electronic signatures herein, or in any amendments to this 

Agreement, and any electronic records related to this Agreement (including, without 
limitation, any agreement or other record created, generated, sent, communicated, 
received, or stored by electronic means), shall be of the same legal effect, validity and 
enforceability as a manually executed signature or use of a paper-based record-keeping 
system to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, including the Federal Electronic 
Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, the California Uniform Electronic 
Transaction Act and any other applicable law, including, without limitation, any state law 
based on the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or the Uniform Commercial Code. 

 
The words “execution,” “signed,” “signature,” and words of like import in this 

Agreement shall include images of manually executed signatures transmitted by 
facsimile or other electronic format (including, without limitation, “pdf” “tif” or “jpg”) and 
other electronic signatures (including, without limitation, DocuSign or Acrobat Sign). 

 
The parties agree that electronically signed and/or electronically transmitted 

signatures shall be conclusive proof, admissible in judicial proceedings, of such party’s 
execution of this Agreement. 
 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / /  
  



 17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on 
the date next to their signatures. 
 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
 
Date:     By:        
  Michael C. Leue, P.E. 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  
 
 Attest:    
  Secretary 
 
 

BCA WATSON RICE – WESTERN 
REGION, LLP   

 
Date:     By:       
 
 Name:   
 
 Title:   
 
 
 Attest:       
 
 Name:       
 
 Title:       
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
___________________________, 2024 
Hydee Feldstein Soto, Los Angeles City Attorney 
 
By _______________________________ 
 Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy 
 ACTA Co-General Counsel 
 
 
 
Rev. 2-22-24 



 

 

3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200, Long Beach, CA 90806 www.acta.org 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

ACTA’s Chief Operating Officer will direct the efforts of the Consultant, with oversight by the Chief Executive Officer.   

The following areas are intended to be guidelines as to the type of assignments for which the Consultant will provide 
Information Technology assistance to ACTA. 

• Define architecture and acquire hardware for office computer network 

• Manage acquisition of computers, peripherals and software 

• Provide computer IT services including user assistance and software upgrades 

• Collaborate on website development and manage website maintenance 

• Collaborate on phone system implementation and maintenance 

• Track ACTA owned assets with inventory database and tags 

• Maintain SCADA based emergency phone and ladder alarm system 

• Maintain WAN to relay emergency phone and ladder status to ICTF and San Bernardino 

• Maintain WAN & server at ACTA’s datacenter in downtown Los Angeles for Automatic Equipment 
Identification (AEI) readers 

• Maintain IP based cameras at trench’s portals and pump stations 

• Advise maintenance contractor on signal and communication system work 

• Perform ACTA’s data backup and maintain offsite storage 

• Support specialty software such as Sparkrock web-based accounting system 

• Maintain access or replace dormant Expedition system 

• Be on-call for IT emergency response 

 



 
 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 

Contract Task Order 
 
(Date) 
(Consultant) 
(Consultant address) 
(City, State, Zip) 
 
Attention: (Project Manager) 
 
Subject:  Agreement No. ______ 

Contract Task Order No. __ 
 
Project Name 
 
Pursuant to Section 2 of Agreement No. ______, after receipt of a written Notice to 
Proceed signed by ACTA’s CEO, Consultant shall proceed with the following:  
 
Task Services           Authorized Amount     
    
 
 
 
Consultant shall provide all required task, services, and deliverables in accordance with 
Exhibit A to Agreement No. ________. 
 
Consultant shall complete the work within ____ calendar days from ACTA’s transmittal 
of its written Notice to Proceed.  
 
Consultant shall undertake the following MBE/WBE/SBE/VSBE/DVBE/OBE utilization in 
connection with its performance of this Contract Task Order No. __: 
 
 
Consultant acknowledges that the terms and conditions of Agreement No. _____ 
govern this Contract Task Order and that its signature below reflects its agreement with 
the terms and conditions of this Contract Task Order No. __. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact ____________ at (562) 247-______. 
 
Very truly yours,  
 
 
Mike Leue 
ACTA Chief Executive Officer   ACCEPTED: 
 
       ____________________________ 

(Consultant Name) 



 

 

Exhibit “C” 
 
 

Form of Notice to Proceed 
 
 
 

 
(Date) 
(Consultant) 
(Consultant address) 
(City, State, Zip) 
 
Attention: (Project Manager) 
 
Subject: Agreement No. ______ 

Notice to Proceed – Contract Task Order No.  __ 
    Project Name 
 
This is to notify and direct you to commence performance of the subject Contract Task 
Order No. _____.  Enclosed is your set of the executed Contract Task Order 
documents. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact __________ at (562) 247-_____. 
 
Very truly yours,  
 
 
Mike Leue 
ACTA Chief Executive Officer    
 
Enclosure: Contract Task No. __ 



EXHIBIT D

RATE SHEET

Information Technology (IT) Services

Submitted by: BCA  Watson Rice - Western Region, LLP 

Job Title/Description

Indicate 

Prime or 

Sub role

Maximum Hourly Rate 

(For Employees)

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4

1 Client Services Partner Prime $250 $258 $265 $273

2 IT Manager Prime $200 $206 $212 $219

3 Project Manager Prime $200 $206 $212 $219

4 Networking Engineer Prime $150 $155 $159 $164

5 IT Infrastructure Engineer Prime $150 $155 $159 $164

6 Application Support Engineer Prime $150 $155 $159 $164

7 Website / Software Development Prime $150 $155 $159 $164

8 Cybersecurity Analyst Prime $125 $129 $133 $137

9 Help Desk Support Prime $100 $103 $106 $109

Other Direct Costs

Mileage per IRS Rate per IRS Rate per IRS Rate per IRS Rate

Up to $20,000 of the Agreement budget may be utilized for travel, transportation and 

meal expenses (collectively “travel expenses”) incurred by Consultant in performing 

services under the Agreement.  All travel expenses shall be pre-approved in writing 

by ACTA through a task order and invoiced by Consultant in accordance with ACTA’s 

travel policy.  Consultant shall describe in detail in its billings any travel expenses incurred, 

and ACTA retains the right to audit these expenses.  All travel expenses shall be 

reimbursed in the same manner for which the travel would be reimbursable to ACTA 

employees if incurred by them in the performance of their duties. Any travel expenses not 

pre-approved by ACTA may be rejected for reimbursement.



Agreement No.: Invoice Number:

TIN: Date:

ACTA PM:

PERSONNEL: Rate/Hour

Current 

Hours

Cumulative 
Hours

Current 

Total

Name & Title $0.00 0 0 $0.00

" $0.00 0 0 $0.00

" $0.00 0 0 $0.00

" $0.00 0 0 $0.00

" $0.00 0 0 $0.00

" $0.00 0 0 $0.00

Total Labor Cost: $0.00

SUBCONSULTANT: Activity

Current 

Total

Name of Subconsultant Work Performed $0.00

" $0.00

" $0.00

" $0.00

Total Subconsultant Cost: $0.00

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES:

Current 

Total

Mileage, Parking, Car Rentals, Reproduction/Copies, etc. $0.00

" $0.00

" $0.00

" $0.00

" $0.00

Total Other Direct Cost: $0.00

REMIT PAYMENT TO:

Company Name $0.00

Address

City, ST Zip

Progress Report:  Describe the work undertaken during this billing period.  Identify accomplishments and

challenges encountered.  Provide other info as appropriate.

I certify under penalty of perjury that the above bill is just and correct according to the terms of Agmt #_______ and that 

payment has not been received.  

Date:

Consultant Representative Name APPROVED AS TO SCOPE AND

AMOUNT OF WORK PERFORMED

ACTA PROJECT MANAGER

Task number, Project Title

Billing Period: Month/Day/Year to Month/Day/Year

Company Letterhead

TOTAL AMOUNT NOW DUE:

Authorized PD Budget Current Invoice Invoiced To-Date PD Balance

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXHIBIT E



Instructions:   Please indicate the participation levels achieved for the month of _______________ for the referenced contract number.

Contract No. Start Date End Date

Committed SBE Participation Percentage

PROPOSED

Name of Subcontractor Work Performed
Certifications:*

SBE/VSBE/MBE/WBE/OBE/DVBE

Original 

Proposed SBE 

Percentage

Amount Paid

 This Month

Amount Paid

to Date

Overall Contract 

Amount 

Percentage 

(Paid to Date)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

* Indicate all certifications held by each subcontractor

3 Rev.  05/13/2019

Exhibit F 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 

MONTHLY SUBCONTRACTOR MONITORING REPORT

ACTUALS



EXHIBIT G 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (“ACTA”) is committed to creating an 
environment that provides all individuals and businesses open access to the business 
opportunities available at ACTA.  ACTA's Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program 
was created to provide opportunities for small businesses to participate in professional 
service and construction contracts.  It is the policy of ACTA to solicit participation in the 
performance of all service contracts by all individuals and businesses, including, but not 
limited to, SBEs, women-owned business enterprises (WBEs), minority-owned business 
enterprises (MBEs), and disabled veteran business enterprises (DVBEs).  The SBE 
Program allows ACTA to target small business participation, including MBEs, WBEs, 
and DVBEs, more effectively.   

An overall ACTA goal of 25% SBE participation by total contract value and/or by total 
number of contracts awarded to SBE prime consultants or contractors has been 
established for the Program.  The specific goal or requirement for each contract 
opportunity may be higher or lower based on the scope of work, and will be stated in the 
specific request for proposals or bids.  Based on the work to be performed under 
this Agreement, it has been determined that the percentage of required small 
business participation will be 0%.   

Consultant shall be responsible for determining the SBE status of its subconsultants for 
purposes of meeting the small business requirement, where required, and for reporting 
to ACTA.  Subconsultants must qualify as an SBE based on the type of services that 
they will be performing under the Agreement.  All business participation will be 
determined by the percentage of the total amount of compensation under the 
agreement paid to SBEs. 



 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPANY STATUS 
 

“The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that the following 
information and information contained on the attached Contractor Description Form is true and correct and include all 
material information necessary to identify and explain the operations of  
 

Name of Firm 
 
as well as the ownership thereof.  Further, the undersigned agrees to provide either through the prime consultant or, directly 
to ACTA, complete and accurate information regarding ownership in the named firm, any proposed changes of the 
ownership and to permit the audit and examination of firm ownership documents in association with this agreement.” 
Small/Very Small Business Enterprise Program: Please indicate the ownership of your company.  Please check all that 
apply.  At least one box must be checked: 

SBE       VSBE      MBE      WBE      DVBE      OBE 
 
Signature ______________________________________  Title  ___________________________________________ 
Printed Name  __________________________________  Date Signed _____________________________________ 
 

NOTARY 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA            ) 
                                                     ) ss 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES     ) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place Notary Seal and/or Stamp Above 
 

 
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this _______ day of 
______________________, 20___ by 
 

(1)  _______________________________________________ 
Name of Signer (1) 

 
Who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person 
who appeared before me (.)(,) 
 

   (and) 
 
(2) __________________________________________________ 

Name of Signer (2) 
 
Who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person 
who appeared before me.) 
 
Signature ________________________________________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Contractor Description Form 
 
For the Prime Contractor and each Subcontractor, state the type of SBE certification claimed and, if available, 
return documentation with this form to ACTA evidencing the declared SBE certification. 
 
PRIME CONTRACTOR 
 
Contract #: ___________    Award Date:   ___________    Contract Term:   _________ 
Contract Title: __________________________________________________________ 
Business Name: ______________________________   Award Total:  $  ____________ 
Owner’s Ethnicity: _____ Gender ______Group: SBE   VSBE   MBE   WBE   DVBE   OBE  

(Circle all that apply)  
If claimed, state SBE certification type: _______________________________________ 
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
City/State/Zip: ___________________________________________________________       
Telephone: (         ) ___________________   FAX:  (         ) _______________________       
Contact Person/Title: ______________________________________________________ 
Email Address: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR 
 
Business Name: ______________________________   Award Total:  $  ____________ 
Services to be provided: __________________________________________________ 
Owner’s Ethnicity: _________ Gender _____ Group: SBE   VSBE   MBE   WBE   DVBE   OBE  

(Circle all that apply)  
If claimed, state SBE certification type: _______________________________________ 
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________     
City/State/Zip: ___________________________________________________________       
Telephone: (         ) ___________________   FAX:  (         ) _______________________       
Contact Person/Title: _____________________________________________________ 
Email Address: __________________________________________________________ 
 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR 
 
Business Name: ______________________________   Award Total:  $  ____________ 
Services to be provided: __________________________________________________ 
Owner’s Ethnicity: _________ Gender _____ Group: SBE   VSBE   MBE   WBE   DVBE   OBE  

(Circle all that apply)  
If claimed, state SBE certification type: _______________________________________ 
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________     
City/State/Zip: __________________________________________________________       
Telephone: (         ) ___________________   FAX:  (         ) ____________________       
Contact Person/Title: ____________________________________________________ 
Email address: _________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 



  ITEM #07 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Graham M. Christie, Chief Operating Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE Agreement No. C0923 with Jenkins, Gales & Martinez, Inc. for a term of 6 
months and compensation not‐to‐exceed $132,000 to provide environmental 
services 

Recommendation:  

Approve the proposed Agreement No. C0923 with Jenkins Gales & Martinez, Inc. (JGM) for Environmental Services 

in an amount not‐to‐exceed $132,000 for a 6‐month term and authorize the Chief Executive Officer or his designee 

to execute said agreement.   

Discussion: 

ACTA's core competency and capabilities of employed staff are related to contract administration, accounting and 

accounts payable activities.  ACTA relies on contracted services to provide engineering and technical support. Prior 

to the subject agreement, the Alameda Corridor Engineering Team (ACET), a Joint Venture of four engineering 

firms, provided various engineering, environmental, property disposition and IT services. As the sunset of the ACET 

agreement term approached, the Governing Board directed that the contract for the services provided by ACET 

should be renewed using competitive selection procedures. 

As directed by the Governing Board, over the past months ACTA staff has undertaken several competitive selection 

procedures to replace the services provided by the ACET firms,  including engineering, environmental, property 

disposition and information technology services. The services that had previously been provided by ACET were 

broken down into several components to be contracted for separately. On‐call Engineering and IT services were 

procured through two Request for Proposals (RFP). ACTA advertised seeking well‐qualified and experienced firms 

to be available to provide on‐call services in support of Alameda Corridor operations and maintenance. The on‐

call engineering and the IT services are to be provided on an as‐needed basis through Contract Task Orders (CTO) 

issued by ACTA to the two consultants during the term of the Agreement.   

While  the  selections  for  replacement  of  ACET  services  are  substantially  complete,  the  selection  process  for 

environmental services has not been concluded.   

Selection Process: 

ACTA staff explored several options to solicit the environmental services  including contracting with one of the 

Ports (Port of Los Angeles or Port of Long Beach) using their internal staff or selecting a consulting firm that has 

similar a contract with one of the Ports. Using Port staff was not found to be viable, and while we found a firm 

under contract to the Port of Los Angeles that was capable and willing to perform all the required environmental 



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #07 

  ２

services for ACTA, we have not validated a “piggyback” on the port contract. The preferred option that may be 

employed is an open RFP process.  

The ACET agreement will expire on June 30, 2024, which does not leave sufficient time for ACTA staff to complete 

a competitive selection process for the environmental services required by ACTA.  JGM is one of the engineering 

firm members of the ACET joint venture and the purpose of the proposed agreement is to provide a short‐term 

bridge for continued services until a firm can be engaged through a competitive selection process. 

Budget Impact: 

The contract value for the proposed JGM agreement is $132,000 over 6 months. This budget amount is based on 

ACTA’s proposed “Hybrid Organization,” as presented to the Governing Board on April 6, 2023, which transitions 

from the past budgets for ACET to a combination of on‐call services and in‐house staffing. 

Funds of approximately $345,000 for the first year of Environmental services, to be provided by JGM initially and 

then a  longer‐term contract  subsequently, are  included  in  the FY25 Operating Budget under  the Professional 

Services  line  item plus the Non‐Rail Support Service  in the Operations & Maintenance budget. Funds for future 

fiscal years will be brought to the Governing Board as part of the Operating Budget for approval each year.  

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed and approved the proposed Agreement as to form. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – Agreement Scope of Work 

Transmittal 2 – Agreement No. C0923 with JGM 



3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200, Long Beach, CA 90806 www.acta.org 

SCOPE OF WORK 

ACTA’s Chief Operating Officer will direct the efforts of the Consultant, with oversight by the Chief Executive Officer. 

The following services are intended to be guidelines as to the type of assignments for which the Consultant may 

provide environmental engineering assistance to ACTA. 

• Coordinate environmental activities by maintenance contractor or cleanup contractor;

• Coordinate environmental activities required by local/state/federal agencies;

• Obtain permits required by local/state/federal agencies;

• Coordinate legal responses to environmental issues;

• Inspect pump stations; develop budget and oversee repairs;

• Maintain relationships and comply with Los Angeles County Department of Public works and Los Angeles

County Sanitation Districts;

• Inspect and oversee the removal of unauthorized hazardous, bio-hazardous, and other regulated waste;

• Prepare and file annual hazardous waste information with California Department of Hazardous Waste and

City of Los Angeles Fire Department;

• Provide environmental information for property transfers;

• Respond to requests for environmental information from municipalities, agencies and/or Freedom of

Information Act;

• Conduct field investigations to obtain data on environmental matters by operating a variety of field sampling

equipment and interviewing stakeholders;

• Review and report on existing and proposed environmental laws, regulations and guidelines;

• Research court decisions, legislation, newspapers and professional journals to obtain information for specific

projects;

• Contact various agencies to ascertain their methods, policies, and laws on environmental issues;

• Attend outside agencies' meetings to enhance awareness of rulings which may affect ACTA;

• Make recommendations regarding ACTA goals, policies and procedures for the control of pollutants;

• Evaluate and address any potential environmental impacts from the storage and handling of hazardous

materials;

• Conduct investigations on noise, water or air quality;

• Make presentations to Governing Board, community groups and others;

• May testify in court or appear as an expert witness;

• Maintain files, records, documentation, and schedules related to environmental activities;

• Coordinate response actions associated with legal settlements, communicate findings/actions to the ports

and attorneys to ensure compliance, and document the findings/actions and communications.

• Be on-call for environmental emergency response.

Transmittal 1



1 

AGREEMENT NO. ________ 

BETWEEN THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND 
JENKINS, GALES & MARTINEZ, INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the 
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a California Joint Powers 
Authority (“ACTA”), acting by and through its Governing Board (“Board”) and JENKINS, 
GALES & MARTINEZ, INC., a California corporation, 6033 W. Century Boulevard, Suite 
601, Los Angeles, California 90045 (“Consultant”). 

WHEREAS, ACTA has an agreement with the Alameda Corridor Engineering 
Team (ACET), a joint venture of four engineering firms that includes Consultant to provide 
various services to ACTA, including environmental services; and 

WHEREAS, the ACET agreement is set to expire on June 30, 2024, and ACTA 
requires the continuation of services provided by Consultant during a transition period 
while a competitive selection process for a new service provider is undertaken; and 

WHEREAS, ACTA requires the professional, expert, and technical services of 
Consultant to assist ACTA in performing necessary and required environmental activities 
related to the operation of the Alameda Corridor; and 

WHEREAS, Consultant, by virtue of training and experience, is well qualified to 
provide such services to ACTA; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONSULTANT

A. Consultant hereby agrees to render to ACTA, as an independent contractor,
certain professional, technical and expert services as set forth in Exhibit A (“Scope of 
Work”). 

B. Consultant, at its sole cost and expense, shall furnish all services, materials,
equipment, subsistence, transportation and all other items necessary to perform the 
Scope of Work.  As between ACTA and Consultant, Consultant is solely responsible for 
any taxes or fees which may be assessed against it or its employees resulting from 
performance of the Scope of Work, whether social security, payroll or other, and 
regardless of whether assessed by the federal government, any state, city, or any other 
governmental entity. 

C. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that it lacks authority to perform any
services outside the Scope of Work.  Consultant further acknowledges and agrees that 

C0923



 2 

any services it performs outside the Scope of Work are performed as a volunteer and 
shall not be compensable under this Agreement.   
 
 D. The Scope of Work shall be performed by personnel qualified and 
competent in the sole reasonable discretion of ACTA’s Chief Executive Officer (“ACTA’s 
CEO”) or his or her designee, whether performance is undertaken by Consultant or third-
parties with whom Consultant has contracted (“Subconsultants”).  Obligations of this 
Agreement, whether undertaken by Consultant or Subconsultants, are and shall be the 
responsibility of Consultant.  Consultant acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement 
creates no rights in Subconsultants with respect to ACTA and that obligations that may 
be owed to Subconsultants, including, but not limited to, the obligation to pay 
Subconsultants for services performed, are those of Consultant alone.  Upon ACTA’s 
CEO’s written request, Consultant shall supply ACTA with all agreements between 
Consultant and its Subconsultants. 
 
2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ACTA 
 

A. ACTA shall furnish Consultant, upon its request, all documents and papers 
in possession of ACTA which may lawfully be supplied to Consultant and which are 
necessary for Consultant to perform its obligations. 

 
B. ACTA’s CEO or his or her designee is designated as the contract 

administrator for ACTA and shall also decide any and all questions which may arise as to 
the quality or acceptability of the services performed and the manner of performance, the 
interpretation of instructions to Consultant and the acceptable completion of this 
Agreement and the amount of compensation due.  Notwithstanding the preceding, the 
termination of this Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of Section 10 
(Termination) hereof. 

 
 C. Consultant shall provide ACTA’s CEO with reasonable advance written 
notice if it requires access to the premises of ACTA or of the Alameda Corridor.  Access 
rights, if any, shall be granted to Consultant at the sole reasonable discretion of ACTA’s 
CEO, specifying conditions Consultant must satisfy in connection with such access.  
Consultant acknowledges that such areas may be occupied or used by tenants or 
contractors of ACTA and that access rights granted by ACTA to Consultant shall be 
consistent with any such occupancy or use. 
 
3. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 

A. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date of its execution by 
ACTA’s CEO or his designee upon authorization of the Board.   
 

B. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect commencing from the date 
of execution and shall continue until the earlier of the following occurs: 

  
 1.  Six (6) months have lapsed from the effective date of this Agreement; 
 



 3 

  or 
 

2. The Board, in its sole discretion, terminates and cancels all or part of 
this Agreement for any reason upon giving to Consultant ten (10) days’ 
notice in writing of its election to cancel and terminate this Agreement.   

 
4. TERMINATION DUE TO NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
 

Pursuant to Section 5 of ACTA’s Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement, ACTA shall be restricted in its powers in the same manner as the City of Los 
Angeles is restricted in its exercise of similar powers.  Therefore, this Agreement is 
subject to the provisions of the Los Angeles City Charter Section 320 which precludes 
ACTA from making any expenditure of funds or incurring any liability, including contractual 
commitments, in excess of the amount appropriated therefor. 
 

The Board, in awarding this Agreement, is expected to appropriate sufficient funds 
to meet the estimated expenditure of funds through June 30 of the current fiscal year and 
to make further appropriations in each succeeding fiscal year during the life of the 
Agreement. However, the Board is under no legal obligation to do so. 
 

ACTA, its board, officers, and employees are not bound by the terms of this 
Agreement or obligated to make payment thereunder in any fiscal year in which the Board 
does not appropriate funds therefore.  The Consultant is not entitled to any compensation 
in any fiscal year in which funds have not been appropriated for the Agreement by the 
Board. 
 

Although the Consultant is not obligated to perform any work under the Agreement 
in any fiscal year in which no appropriation for the Agreement has been made, the 
Consultant agrees to resume performance of the work required by the Agreement on the 
same terms and conditions for a period of sixty (60) days after the end of the fiscal year 
if an appropriation therefore is approved by the Board within that 60-day period.  The 
Consultant is responsible for maintaining all insurance and bonds during this 60-day 
period until the appropriation is made; however, such extension of time is not 
compensable. 
 

If in any subsequent fiscal year funds are not appropriated by the Board for the 
work required by the Agreement, the Agreement shall be terminated.  However, such 
termination shall not relieve the parties of liability for any obligation previously incurred. 
 
5. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 
 

A. As compensation for the satisfactory performance of the services required 
by this Agreement, ACTA shall pay and reimburse Consultant at the rates set forth in 
Exhibit B. 
 



 4 

B. The maximum amount payable under this Agreement, including 
reimbursable expenses, if any (see Exhibit B), shall be One Hundred Thirty-Two 
Thousand Dollars ($132,000). 
 
 C. Consultant shall submit invoices in duplicate to ACTA monthly following the 
effective date of this Agreement for services performed during the preceding month.  Each 
such invoice shall be signed by the Consultant and shall include the following certification: 
 

“I certify under penalty of perjury that the above invoice is true and 
just, in accordance with the terms of Agreement No. ________, that 
payment of this invoice has not been received and that none of the 
items contained in the invoice have been submitted to any other 
agency. 
     __________________________” 
     (Consultant’s Signature) 

 
 D. All invoices shall be approved by ACTA’s CEO or his or her designee prior 
to payment.  All invoices due and payable and found to be in order shall be paid as soon 
as, in the ordinary course of ACTA business, the same may be approved, audited and 
processed. 
 

Invoices shall include the Agreement number, employee name, title/classification, 
hourly rate, hours worked, current charges and cumulative charges.  Subconsultant 
invoices shall be in a similar format.  Consultant shall submit appropriate supporting 
documents with each invoice.  Such documents may include provider invoices, payrolls, 
and time sheets.  ACTA may require, and Consultant shall provide, all documents 
reasonably required to determine whether amounts on the invoice are allowable 
expenses under this Agreement.  All invoices are subject to audit.  Consultant is not 
required to submit support for direct costs items of $25 or less. 
 

Further, where the Consultant employs Subconsultants under this Agreement, the 
Consultant shall submit to ACTA, with each monthly invoice, a Monthly Subconsultant 
Monitoring Report Form (Exhibit C) listing SBE/VSBE/MBE/WBE/DVBE/OBE amounts.  
Where applicable, Consultant shall provide an explanation for any item that does not meet 
or exceed the anticipated participation levels for this Agreement, with specific plans and 
recommendations for improved Subconsultant utilization.  Invoices will not be paid without 
a completed Monthly Subconsultant Monitoring Report Form.   

 
E. For payment and processing, all invoices should be sent to the following 

address:   
Accounts Payable Department 
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 
3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200 
Long Beach, California 90806 
 



 5 

In addition to, or in lieu of, mailing invoices per the above instructions, 
Consultant may email invoices to accountspayable@acta.org, and Consultant shall be 
responsible for confirming receipt of emailed invoices.  ACTA shall not be responsible for 
invoices incorrectly emailed or not received due to technical issues, regardless of the 
source of such issues. 

 
6. RECORDKEEPING AND AUDIT RIGHTS 
 

A. Consultant shall keep and maintain full, complete and accurate books of 
accounts and records of the services performed under this Agreement in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied, which books and records 
shall be readily accessible to and open for inspection and copying at Consultant’s 
premises by ACTA, its auditors or other authorized representatives.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Agreement, failure to do so shall constitute a conclusive waiver of 
any right to compensation for such services as are otherwise compensable hereunder.  
Such books and records shall be maintained by Consultant for a period of three (3) years 
after completion of services to be performed under this Agreement or until all disputes, 
appeals, litigation or claims arising from this Agreement have been resolved.   
 

B. During the term of this Agreement, ACTA may audit, review and copy any 
and all writings (as that term is defined in Section 250 of the California Evidence Code) 
of Consultant and Subconsultants arising from or related to this Agreement or 
performance of the Scope of Work, whether such writings are (a) in final form or not, 
(b) prepared by Consultant, Subconsultants or any individual or entity acting for or on 
behalf of Consultant or a Subconsultant, and (c) without regard to whether such writings 
have previously been provided to ACTA.  Consultant shall be responsible for obtaining 
access to and providing writings of Subconsultants.  Consultant shall provide ACTA at 
Consultant's sole cost and expense a copy of all such writings within fourteen (14) 
calendar days of a written request by ACTA.  ACTA's right shall also include inspection 
at reasonable times of the Consultant's office or facilities which are engaged in the 
performance of the Scope of Work.  Consultant shall, at no cost to ACTA, furnish 
reasonable facilities and assistance for such review and audit.  Consultant's failure to 
comply with this Section 6 shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall 
entitle ACTA to withhold any payment due under this Agreement until such breach is 
cured. 
 
7.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

Consultant, in the performance of the work required by this Agreement, is an 
independent contractor and not an agent or employee of ACTA.  Consultant shall not 
represent itself as an agent or employee of ACTA and shall have no power to bind ACTA 
in contract or otherwise. 
 
 
 

mailto:accountspayable@acta.org


 6 

8. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Except for the sole negligence or willful misconduct of ACTA, its Board or any of 
its officers, agents, employees, assigns and successors in interest, Consultant 
undertakes and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless ACTA, its Board and any 
of its officers, agents, employees, assigns, and successors in interest from and against 
all suits and causes of action, claims, losses, demands and expenses, including, but not 
limited to, attorney's fees (both in house and outside counsel) and cost of litigation 
(including all actual litigation costs incurred by ACTA, including but not limited to, costs of 
experts and consultants), damages or liability of any nature whatsoever, for death or injury 
to any person, including Consultant’s employees and agents, or damage or destruction 
of any property of either party hereto or of third parties, arising in any manner by reason 
of the negligent acts, errors, omissions or willful misconduct incident to the performance 
of this Agreement by Consultant or its Subcontractors of any tier. Rights and remedies 
available to ACTA under this provision are cumulative of those provided for elsewhere in 
this Agreement and those allowed under the laws of the United States and the State of 
California.  
 
9. INSURANCE 
 
 A. In addition to and not as a substitute for, or limitation of, any of the indemnity 
obligations imposed by Section 8, Consultant shall procure and maintain at its sole cost 
and expense and keep in force at all times during the term of this Agreement the following 
insurance:  
 

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance 
 
Commercial general liability insurance covering personal and advertising injury, 

bodily injury, and property damage providing contractual liability, independent 
contractors, products and completed operations, and premises/operations coverage 
written by an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of California rated 
VII, A- or better in Best’s Insurance Guide (or an alternate guide acceptable to ACTA if 
Best’s is not available) within Consultant’s normal limits of liability but not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for injury or claim.  Said limits shall 
provide first dollar coverage except that ACTA’s CEO may permit a self-insured retention 
or self-insurance in those cases where, in his or her judgment, such retention or self-
insurance is justified by the net worth of Consultant.  The retention or self-insurance 
provided shall provide that any other insurance maintained by ACTA shall be excess of 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.  In all cases, regardless of any 
deductible or retention, said insurance shall contain a defense of suits provision and a 
severability of interest clause. Each policy shall name ACTA, its Board, officers, agents 
and employees as additional insureds.   

 
 
 
 



 7 

(2) Automobile Liability Insurance 
 

Automobile liability insurance written by an insurance company authorized to do 
business in the State of California rated VII, A- or better in Best’s Insurance Guide (or an 
alternate guide acceptable to ACTA if Best’s is not available) within Consultant’s normal 
limits of liability but not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) covering 
damages, injuries or death resulting from each accident or claim arising out of any one 
claim or accident. Said insurance shall protect against claims arising from actions or 
operations of the insured, or by its employees.  Coverage shall contain a defense of suits 
provision and a severability of interest clause. Each policy shall name ACTA, its Board, 
officers, agents and employees as Primary additional insureds.   
 

(3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
 
Consultant shall certify that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the 

California Labor code which requires every employer to be insured against liability for 
Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions 
of that Code, and that Consultant shall comply with such provisions before commencing 
the performance of the tasks under this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit Workers’ 
Compensation policies whether underwritten by the state insurance fund or private 
carrier, which provide that the public or private carrier waives its right of subrogation 
against ACTA in any circumstance in which it is alleged that actions or omissions of ACTA 
contributed to the accident.  Such Worker’s Compensation and occupational disease 
requirements shall include coverage for all employees of Consultant, and for all 
employees of any subcontractor or other vendor retained by Consultant.   
 

(4) Professional Liability Insurance 
 

Consultant is required to provide Professional Liability insurance with respect to 
negligent or wrongful acts, errors or omissions, or failure to render services in connection 
with the professional services to be provided under this Agreement.  This insurance shall 
protect against claims arising from professional services of the insured, or by its 
employees, agents, or contractors, and include coverage (or no exclusion) for contractual 
liability. 
 

Consultant certifies that it now has professional liability insurance in the amount of 
Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), which covers work to be performed pursuant to this 
Agreement and that it will keep such insurance or its equivalent in effect at all times during 
performance of said Agreement and until two (2) years following completion or termination 
of the Agreement.   
 

(5) Pollution Liability Insurance 
 
Consultant shall procure and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, at 

its cost, Pollution Liability coverage written by an insurance company authorized to do 
business in the State of California rated VII, A- or better in Best’s Insurance Guide (or an 



 8 

alternate guide acceptable to ACTA if Best’s Rating is not available), with Consultant’s 
normal limits of liability but not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single 
limit for injury or death or property damage arising out of each accident or occurrence 
covering Consultant’s services under this Agreement.  Said limits shall provide first dollar 
coverage except that ACTA’s CEO may permit a self-insured retention or self-insurance 
in those cases where, in his judgment, such retention or self-insurance is justified by the 
net worth of Consultant.  Consultant’s pollution liability shall include coverage for losses 
caused by pollution conditions that arise from the operation of Consultant described under 
the scope of services of this Agreement and include: (a) on-site and off-site coverage for 
bodily injury, sickness, disease, mental anguish or shock sustained by a person, including 
death; (b) on-site and off-site property damage including physical injury to or destruction 
of tangible property including the resulting loss of use thereof, clean-up costs, and the 
loss of use of tangible property that has not been physically injured or destroyed; (c) on-
site and off-site defense including costs, charges and expenses incurred in the 
investigation adjustment or defense of claims for such compensatory damages. 

 
Non-owned disposal site coverage shall also be provided if Consultant is handling, 

storing or generating hazardous materials or any material/substance otherwise regulated 
under governmental laws/regulations. 

 
The insurance provided shall contain a severability of interest clause and shall 

provide that any other insurance maintained by ACTA shall be excess of Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it.  In all cases, regardless of any deductible or 
retention, said insurance shall contain a defense of suits provision and severability of 
interest clause, have no exclusions for Contractual Liability, have no restrictions for Sole 
Liability of Consultant, and shall not contain any other exclusions contrary to this 
Agreement. 
 

Each policy shall name ACTA, POLA, and POLB, and their Boards, officers, agents 
and employees as Primary and Non-Contributory additional insureds.  
 

B. Insurance Procured by Consultant on Behalf of ACTA 
 
In addition to and not as a substitute for, or limitation of, any of the indemnity 

obligations imposed by Section 8, and where Consultant is required to name ACTA, its 
Board, officers, agents and employees as Primary additional insureds on any insurance 
policy required by this Agreement, Consultant shall cause ACTA to be named as an 
additional insured on all policies it procures in connection with this Section 9.  Consultant 
shall cause such additional insured status to be reflected in the original policy or by 
additional insured endorsement (CG 2010 or equivalent) substantially as follows: 

 
"Notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in the policy to which this 

endorsement is attached, or any endorsement or certificate now or hereafter attached 
hereto, it is agreed that ACTA, its Board, their officers, agents and employees, are 
additional insureds hereunder, and that coverage is provided for all contractual 
obligations, operations, uses, occupations, acts and activities of the insured under 



 9 

Agreement No. ___, and under any amendments, modifications, extensions or renewals 
of said Agreement regardless of where such contractual obligations, operations, uses, 
occupations, acts and activities occur. 
 

"The coverage provided by the policy to which this endorsement is attached is 
primary coverage and any other insurance carried by ACTA is excess coverage; 
 

"In the event of one of the named insured’s incurring liability to any other of the 
named insureds, this policy shall provide protection for each named insured against 
whom claim is or may be made, including claims by other named insureds, in the same 
manner as if separate policies had been issued to each named insured.  Nothing 
contained herein shall operate to increase the company's limit of liability; and 
 

"Notice of occurrences or claims under the policy shall be made to ACTA’s CEO 
with copies sent to ACTA’s Co-General Counsel at the following addresses: 1) Office of 
the Long Beach City Attorney, 411 West Ocean Boulevard, 9th Floor, Long Beach, 
California 90802, and 2) Office of the Los Angeles City Attorney, 425 S. Palos Verdes 
Street, San Pedro, California, 90731." 

 
C. Required Features of Coverages 
 
Insurance procured by Consultant in connection with this Section 9 shall include 

the following features: 
 
(1) Acceptable Evidence and Approval of Insurance 

 
Consultant’s insurance broker or agent shall submit to ACTA the appropriate proof 

of insurance on Consultant’s behalf. 
 
Upon request by ACTA, Consultant shall furnish full copies of certified policies of 

any insurance policy required herein.  This obligation is intended to, and shall, survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 
 

(2) Carrier Requirements 
 

All insurance which Consultant is required to provide pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be placed with insurance carriers authorized to do business in the State of California 
and which are rated A-, VII or better in Best’s Insurance Guide.  Carriers without a Best’s 
rating shall meet comparable standards in another rating service acceptable to ACTA. 
 

(3) Notice of Cancellation 
 

For each insurance policy described above, Consultant shall give a 10-day prior 
notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage for nonpayment of premium, and a 30-day 
prior notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage for any other reason, by written notice 
to ACTA. 



 10 

 
(4) Modification of Coverage 

 
ACTA’s CEO, at his sole reasonable discretion, based upon recommendation of 

independent insurance consultants to ACTA, may increase or decrease amounts and 
types of insurance coverage required hereunder at any time during the term hereof by 
giving ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to Consultant. 

 
(5) Renewal of Policies 

 
At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any policy required by this 

Agreement, Consultant shall renew or extend such policy in accordance with the 
requirements of this Agreement and direct their insurance broker or agent to submit to 
ACTA a renewal endorsement or renewal certificate or, if new insurance has been 
obtained, evidence of insurance as specified above.  If Consultant neglects or fails to 
secure or maintain the insurance required above, ACTA’s CEO may, at his or her own 
option but without any obligation, obtain such insurance to protect ACTA’s interests.  The 
cost of such insurance shall be deducted from the next payment due Consultant. 

 
(6) Limits of Coverage 
 
If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums required by this 

Agreement, ACTA requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 
maintained by Consultant.  Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to ACTA. 

 
D. Accident Reports 

 
Consultant shall report in writing to ACTA’s CEO within fifteen (15) calendar days 

after it, its officers or managing agents have knowledge of any accident or occurrence 
involving death of or injury to any person or persons, or damage in excess of Five 
Hundred Dollars ($500.00) to property, occurring upon any Alameda Corridor property if 
Consultant’s officers, agents or employees are involved in such an accident or 
occurrence.  Such report shall contain to the extent available (1) the name and address 
of the persons involved, (2) a general statement as to the nature and extent of injury or 
damage, (3) the date and hour of occurrence, (4) the names and addresses of known 
witnesses, and (5) such other information as may be known to Consultant, its officers or 
managing agents. 
 
10. TERMINATION PROVISION 
 
 The Board, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to terminate and cancel all or 
any part of this Agreement for any reason upon giving the Consultant ten (10) days’ 
advance, written notice of the Board’s election to cancel and terminate this Agreement.  
It is agreed that any Agreement entered into shall not limit the right of ACTA to hire 



 11 

additional consultants or perform the services described in this Agreement either during 
or after the term of this Agreement. 
 
11. PERSONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
 A. During the term hereof, Consultant agrees that it will not enter into other 
contracts or perform any work without the written permission of ACTA’s CEO where the 
work may conflict with the interests of ACTA. 
 
 B. Consultant acknowledges that it has been selected to perform the Scope of 
Work because of its experience, qualifications and expertise.  Any assignment or other 
transfer of this Agreement or any part hereof shall be void provided, however, that 
Consultant may permit Subconsultant(s) to perform portions of the Scope of Work in 
accordance with Section 1 of this Agreement.  All Subconsultants whom Consultant 
utilizes, however, shall be deemed to be its agents.  Subconsultants’ performance of the 
Scope of Work shall not be deemed to release Consultant from its obligations under this 
Agreement or to impose any obligation on ACTA to such Subconsultant(s) or give the 
Subconsultant(s) any rights against ACTA. 
 
12. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 
 
 The Consultant, during the performance of this Agreement, shall not discriminate 
in its employment practices against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of employee’s or applicant’s race, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, sexual 
orientation, disability, marital status, domestic partner status, or medical condition.  All 
subcontracts awarded shall contain a like nondiscrimination provision. 
 
13. SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 
  
 It is the policy of ACTA to provide Small Business Enterprises (SBE) and Minority-
Owned, Women-Owned, Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises and all Other Business 
Enterprises (MBE/WBE/DVBE/OBE) an equal opportunity to participate in the 
performance of all ACTA contracts in all areas where such contracts afford such 
participation opportunities.  Consultant shall assist ACTA in implementing ACTA’s Small 
Business Program attached hereto as Exhibit D, and shall use its best efforts to afford the 
opportunity for SBEs, MBEs, WBEs, DVBEs, and OBEs to achieve participation in 
subcontracts where such participation opportunities present themselves and attempt to 
ensure that all available business enterprises, including SBEs, MBEs, WBEs, DVBEs, 
and OBEs, have equal participation opportunity which might be presented under this 
Agreement. 
 
14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 It is hereby understood and agreed that the parties to this Agreement have read 
and are aware of the provisions of Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of the 
California Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and 



 12 

employees, as well as the Conflict of Interest Code of ACTA.  All parties hereto agree that 
they are unaware of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or employee 
of ACTA relating to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, it is further understood and agreed that if such financial interest does exist at 
the inception of this Agreement, ACTA may immediately terminate this Agreement by 
giving written notice thereof. 
 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 Consultant shall at all times in the performance of its obligations comply with all 
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and with the reasonable 
requests and directions of ACTA’s CEO. 
 
16. GOVERNING LAW / VENUE 
 
 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of California, without reference to the conflicts of law, rules and principles of 
such State.  The parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with 
this Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the State or Federal courts 
located in the County of Los Angeles, State of California, in the judicial district required 
by court rules. 
 
17. TRADEMARKS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PATENTS 
 

Consultant agrees to save, keep, hold harmless, protect and indemnify ACTA, its 
Board and any of its officers or agents from any damages, cost, or expenses in law or 
equity from infringement of any patent, trademark, service mark or copyright of any 
person or persons, or corporations in consequence of the use by ACTA of any materials 
supplied by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
18. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 
 

A. Writings, as that term is defined in Section 250 of the California Evidence 
Code (including, without limitation, drawings, specifications, estimates, reports, records, 
reference material, data, charts, documents, renderings, computations, computer tapes 
or disks, submittals and other items of any type whatsoever, whether in the form of writing, 
figures or delineations), which are obtained, generated, compiled or derived in connection 
with this Agreement (collectively hereafter referred to as "property"), are owned by ACTA 
as soon as they are developed, whether in draft or final form.  ACTA has the right to use 
or permit the use of property and any ideas or methods represented by such property for 
any purpose and at any time without compensation other than that provided in this 
Agreement.  Consultant hereby warrants and represents that ACTA at all times owns 
rights provided for in this Section 18 free and clear of all third-party claims whether 
presently existing or arising in the future, whether or not presently known. Consultant 
need not obtain for ACTA the right to use any idea, design, method, material, equipment 
or other matter which is the subject of a valid patent, unless such patent is owned by 



 13 

Consultant or one of its employees, or its Subconsultant or the Subconsultant's 
employees, in which case such right shall be obtained without additional compensation.  
Whether or not Consultant's initial proposal or proposals made during this Agreement are 
accepted by ACTA, it is agreed that all information of any nature whatsoever connected 
with the Scope of Work, regardless of the form of communication, which has been or may 
be given by Consultant, its Subconsultants or on either’s behalf, whether prior or 
subsequent to this Agreement becoming effective, to ACTA, its Board, officers, agents or 
employees, is not given in confidence.  Accordingly, ACTA or its designees may use or 
disclose such information without liability of any kind, except as may arise under valid 
patents. 

 
B. If research or development is furnished in connection with this Agreement 

and if, in the course of such research or development, patentable work product is 
produced by Consultant, its officers, agents, employees, or Subconsultants, ACTA shall 
have, without cost or expense to it, an irrevocable, non-exclusive royalty-free license to 
make and use, itself or by anyone on its behalf, such work product in connection with any 
activity now or hereafter engaged in or permitted by ACTA.  Upon ACTA's request, 
Consultant, at its sole cost and expense, shall promptly furnish or obtain from the 
appropriate person a form of license satisfactory to ACTA.  It is expressly understood and 
agreed that, as between ACTA and Consultant, the referenced license shall arise for 
ACTA’s benefit immediately upon the production of the work product, and is not 
dependent on the written license specified above.  ACTA may transfer such license to its 
successors in the operation or ownership of any real or personal property now or hereafter 
owned or operated by ACTA. 
 
19. CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

The data, documents, reports, or other materials which contain information relating 
to the review, documentation, analysis and evaluation of the work described in this 
Agreement and any recommendations made by Consultant relative thereto shall be 
considered confidential and shall not be reproduced, altered, used or disseminated by 
Consultant or its employees or agents in any manner except and only to the extent 
necessary in the performance of the work under this Agreement.  In addition, Consultant 
is required to safeguard such information from access by unauthorized personnel. 
 
20. NOTICES 
 

In all cases where written notice is to be given under this Agreement, service shall 
be deemed sufficient if said notice is deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid.  
When so given, such notice shall be effective from the date of mailing of the same.  For 
the purposes hereof, unless otherwise provided by notice in writing from the respective 
parties, notice ACTA shall be addressed to its Chief Executive Officer, Alameda Corridor 
Transportation Authority, 3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200, Long Beach, California 
90806, and notice to Consultant shall be addressed to it at Consultant’s address set forth 
in the opening paragraph of this Agreement.  Nothing herein contained shall preclude or 
render inoperative service of such notice in the manner provided by law. 
 



 14 

21. INTEGRATION 
 

This Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement between the 
parties hereto with respect to the matters referred to herein.  No other representations, 
covenants, undertakings, or prior or contemporaneous agreements, oral or written, 
regarding such matters which are not specifically contained, referenced, and/or 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference shall be deemed in any way to exist or bind 
any of the parties.  Each party acknowledges that it has not been induced to enter into 
the Agreement and has not executed the Agreement in reliance upon any promises, 
representations, warranties or statements not contained, referenced, and/or incorporated 
into the Agreement.  THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS AGREEMENT IS 
INTENDED TO BE, AND IS, AN INTEGRATED AGREEMENT. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY 
 
 Should any part, term, condition or provision of this Agreement be declared or 
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or incapable of 
being enforced by any rule of law or public policy, the validity of the remaining parts, 
terms, conditions or provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and such 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable part, term, condition or provision shall be treated as 
follows: (a) if such part, term, condition or provision is immaterial to this Agreement, then 
such part, term, condition or provision shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement; 
or (b) if such part, term, condition or provision is material to this Agreement, then the 
parties shall revise the part, term, condition or provision so as to comply with the 
applicable law or public policy and to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as 
possible. 
 
23. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement shall not be construed against the party preparing the same, shall 

be construed without regard to the identity of the person who drafted such and shall be 
construed as if all parties had jointly prepared this Agreement and it shall be deemed their 
joint work product; each and every provision of this Agreement shall be construed as 
though all of the parties hereto participated equally in the drafting hereof; and any 
uncertainty or ambiguity shall not be interpreted against any one party.  As a result of the 
foregoing, any rule of construction that a document is to be construed against the drafting 
party shall not be applicable. 
 
24. TITLES AND CAPTIONS 

 
The parties have inserted the Section titles in this Agreement only as a matter of 

convenience and for reference, and the Section titles in no way define, limit, extend or 
describe the scope of this Agreement or the intent of the parties in including any particular 
provision in this Agreement. 
 
 



 15 

25. MODIFICATION IN WRITING 
 
This Agreement may be modified, amended or changed only by written agreement 

of all parties, said agreement duly executed and delivered by both parties.  Any such 
modifications are subject to all applicable approval processes required by ACTA. 
 
26. WAIVER 

 
A failure of any party to this Agreement to enforce the Agreement upon a breach 

or default shall not waive the breach or default or any other breach or default.  All waivers 
shall be in writing. 

 
27. EXHIBITS; SECTIONS 

All exhibits to which reference is made in this Agreement are deemed incorporated 
in this Agreement, whether or not actually attached.  To the extent the terms of an exhibit 
conflict with or appear to conflict with the terms of the body of the Agreement, the terms 
of the body of the Agreement shall control.  References to Sections are to Sections of this 
Agreement unless stated otherwise. 

28. COUNTERPARTS 
 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument.  

 
The use of electronic signatures herein, or in any amendments to this Agreement, 

and any electronic records related to this Agreement (including, without limitation, any 
agreement or other record created, generated, sent, communicated, received, or stored 
by electronic means), shall be of the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as a 
manually executed signature or use of a paper-based record-keeping system to the fullest 
extent permitted by applicable law, including the Federal Electronic Signatures in Global 
and National Commerce Act, the California Uniform Electronic Transaction Act and any 
other applicable law, including, without limitation, any state law based on the Uniform 
Electronic Transactions Act or the Uniform Commercial Code. 

 
The words “execution,” “signed,” “signature,” and words of like import in this 

Agreement shall include images of manually executed signatures transmitted by facsimile 
or other electronic format (including, without limitation, “pdf” “tif” or “jpg”) and other 
electronic signatures (including, without limitation, DocuSign or Acrobat Sign). 

 
The parties agree that electronically signed and/or electronically transmitted 

signatures shall be conclusive proof, admissible in judicial proceedings, of such party’s 
execution of this Agreement. 
 
 



 16 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on 
the date to the left of their signatures. 
 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
 
Date:     By:        
  Michael C. Leue, P.E. 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  
 
 Attest:    
  Secretary 
 
 
 JENKINS, GALES & MARTINEZ, INC. 
 
Date:     By:       
 
 Name:   
 
 Title:   
 
 
 Attest:       
 
 Name:       
 
 Title:       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
___________________________, 2024 
Hydee Feldstein Soto, Los Angeles City Attorney 
 
By _______________________________ 
 Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy 
 ACTA Co-General Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
Rev. 12/22 



3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200, Long Beach, CA 9080 www.acta.org 

SCOPE OF WORK 

ACTA’s Chief Operating Officer will direct the efforts of the Consultant, with oversight by the Chief Executive Officer. 

The following services are intended to be guidelines as to the type of assignments for which the Consultant may 

provide environmental engineering assistance to ACTA. 

• Coordinate environmental activities by maintenance contractor or cleanup contractor;

• Coordinate environmental activities required by local/state/federal agencies;

• Obtain permits required by local/state/federal agencies;

• Coordinate legal responses to environmental issues;

• Inspect pump stations; develop budget and oversee repairs;

• Maintain relationships and comply with Los Angeles County Department of Public works and Los Angeles

County Sanitation Districts;

• Inspect and oversee the removal of unauthorized hazardous, bio-hazardous, and other regulated waste;

• Prepare and file annual hazardous waste information with California Department of Hazardous Waste and

City of Los Angeles Fire Department;

• Provide environmental information for property transfers;

• Respond to requests for environmental information from municipalities, agencies and/or Freedom of

Information Act;

• Conduct field investigations to obtain data on environmental matters by operating a variety of field sampling

equipment and interviewing stakeholders;

• Review and report on existing and proposed environmental laws, regulations and guidelines;

• Research court decisions, legislation, newspapers and professional journals to obtain information for specific

projects;

• Contact various agencies to ascertain their methods, policies, and laws on environmental issues;

• Attend outside agencies' meetings to enhance awareness of rulings which may affect ACTA;

• Make recommendations regarding ACTA goals, policies and procedures for the control of pollutants;

• Evaluate and address any potential environmental impacts from the storage and handling of hazardous

materials;

• Conduct investigations on noise, water or air quality;

• Make presentations to Governing Board, community groups and others;

• May testify in court or appear as an expert witness;

• Maintain files, records, documentation, and schedules related to environmental activities;

• Coordinate response actions associated with legal settlements, communicate findings/actions to the ports

and attorneys to ensure compliance, and document the findings/actions and communications.

• Be on-call for environmental emergency response.

EXHIBIT A



 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

HOURLY RATES 
 
 

Job Title/Description Prime or Sub 
Maximum 

Hourly 
Rate 

Environmental Professional II Prime $121 



Instructions:   Please indicate the participation levels achieved for the month of ________________ for the referenced contract number.

Contract No. Start Date End Date

Committed SBE Participation Percentage

PROPOSED

Name of Subcontractor Work Performed
Certifications:*

SBE/VSBE/MBE/WBE/OBE/DVBE

Original 
Proposed SBE 

Percentage

Amount Paid
 This Month

Amount Paid
to Date

Overall Contract 
Amount 

Percentage 
(Paid to Date)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

* Indicate all certifications held by each subcontractor
Rev.  05/13/2019

Exhibit C
MONTHLY SUBCONTRACTOR MONITORING REPORT

ACTUALS



  
 
 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 
 
 

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (“ACTA”) is committed to creating an 
environment that provides all individuals and businesses open access to the business 
opportunities available at ACTA.  ACTA's Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program 
was created to provide opportunities for small businesses to participate in professional 
service and construction contracts.  It is the policy of ACTA to solicit participation in the 
performance of all service contracts by all individuals and businesses, including, but not 
limited to, SBEs, women-owned business enterprises (WBEs), minority-owned business 
enterprises (MBEs), and disabled veteran business enterprises (DVBEs).  The SBE 
Program allows ACTA to target small business participation, including MBEs, WBEs, 
and DVBEs, more effectively.   
 
An overall ACTA goal of 25% SBE participation by total contract value and/or by total 
number of contracts awarded to SBE prime consultants or contractors has been 
established for the Program.  The specific goal or requirement for each contract 
opportunity may be higher or lower based on the scope of work, and will be stated in the 
specific request for proposals or bids.  Based on the work to be performed under 
this Agreement, it has been determined that the percentage of required small 
business participation will be 0%.   
 
Consultant shall be responsible for determining the SBE status of its subconsultants for 
purposes of meeting the small business requirement, where required, and for reporting 
to ACTA.  Subconsultants must qualify as an SBE based on the type of services that 
they will be performing under the Agreement.  All business participation will be 
determined by the percentage of the total amount of compensation under the 
agreement paid to SBEs. 
 



 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPANY STATUS 
 

“The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that the following 
information and information contained on the attached Contractor Description Form is true and correct and include all 
material information necessary to identify and explain the operations of  
 

Name of Firm 
 
as well as the ownership thereof.  Further, the undersigned agrees to provide either through the prime consultant or, directly 
to ACTA, complete and accurate information regarding ownership in the named firm, any proposed changes of the 
ownership and to permit the audit and examination of firm ownership documents in association with this agreement.” 
Small/Very Small Business Enterprise Program: Please indicate the ownership of your company.  Please check all that 
apply.  At least one box must be checked: 

SBE       VSBE      MBE      WBE      DVBE      OBE 
 
Signature ______________________________________  Title  ___________________________________________ 
Printed Name  __________________________________  Date Signed _____________________________________ 
 

NOTARY 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA            ) 
                                                     ) ss 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES     ) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place Notary Seal and/or Stamp Above 
 

 
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this _______ day of 
______________________, 20___ by 
 

(1)  _______________________________________________ 
Name of Signer (1) 

 
Who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person 
who appeared before me (.)(,) 
 

   (and) 
 
(2) __________________________________________________ 

Name of Signer (2) 
 
Who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person 
who appeared before me.) 
 
Signature ________________________________________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Contractor Description Form 
 
For the Prime Contractor and each Subcontractor, state the type of SBE certification claimed and, if available, 
return documentation with this form to ACTA evidencing the declared SBE certification. 
 
PRIME CONTRACTOR 
 
Contract #: ___________    Award Date:   ___________    Contract Term:   _________ 
Contract Title: __________________________________________________________ 
Business Name: ______________________________   Award Total:  $  ____________ 
Owner’s Ethnicity: _____ Gender ______Group: SBE   VSBE   MBE   WBE   DVBE   OBE  

(Circle all that apply)  
If claimed, state SBE certification type: _______________________________________ 
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
City/State/Zip: ___________________________________________________________       
Telephone: (         ) ___________________   FAX:  (         ) _______________________       
Contact Person/Title: ______________________________________________________ 
Email Address: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR 
 
Business Name: ______________________________   Award Total:  $  ____________ 
Services to be provided: __________________________________________________ 
Owner’s Ethnicity: _________ Gender _____ Group: SBE   VSBE   MBE   WBE   DVBE   OBE  

(Circle all that apply)  
If claimed, state SBE certification type: _______________________________________ 
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________     
City/State/Zip: ___________________________________________________________       
Telephone: (         ) ___________________   FAX:  (         ) _______________________       
Contact Person/Title: _____________________________________________________ 
Email Address: __________________________________________________________ 
 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR 
 
Business Name: ______________________________   Award Total:  $  ____________ 
Services to be provided: __________________________________________________ 
Owner’s Ethnicity: _________ Gender _____ Group: SBE   VSBE   MBE   WBE   DVBE   OBE  

(Circle all that apply)  
If claimed, state SBE certification type: _______________________________________ 
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________     
City/State/Zip: __________________________________________________________       
Telephone: (         ) ___________________   FAX:  (         ) ____________________       
Contact Person/Title: ____________________________________________________ 
Email address: _________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 



  ITEM #08 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:   Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE a Revised Second Amendment to Agreement No. M0899 with Union 
Pacific Railroad for the Dolores Yard Crossover Project Reimbursement of ACTA 
Costs for Construction Related Activities, increasing the reimbursement amount by 
$865,451 and extending the term to three years 

Recommendation:  

Authorize the Chief Executive Officer or his designee to execute the revised Second Amendment to Agreement 
No. M0899 with the Union Pacific Railroad Co. (UPRR), so ACTA may continue to provide certain reimbursable 
services for UPRR’s Dolores Yard Crossover Project. 

The  revised Second Agreement  increases  the costs associated with construction on ACTA  right‐of‐way, design 
review and administration by $865,451 to a total not to exceed amount of $2,522,451 to be reimbursed by UPRR 
as costs are expended by ACTA and its contractors.  

Discussion: 

This Board item is for ACTA cost reimbursement from UPRR on the Dolores Yard Crossover Project in accordance 
with the Project Memorandum of Agreement. This Board  item replaces  in  its entirety the previously approved 
Second Amendment approved by the Governing Board meeting. 

The ACTA Governing Board approved execution of Agreement M0899 on June 16, 2022, and approved the first 
amendment to the agreement on February 2, 2023. In early May 2023, construction on the project stopped due 
to unforeseen field conditions. Once the project resumes, there will be a need for additional flagging, additional 
signal field support, completion of all signal work, testing, and the commissioning of Control Point (CP) Thenard, 
CP Long Beach and CP Sepulveda. There will also be a  re‐mobilization  to complete  signal and  trackwork, and 
additional administration costs related to the project. The total increase for the second amendment is $865,451 
and the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will be $2,522,451. 

Budget Impact: 

There is no impact to the FY24/25 Operating Budget associated with the Dolores Yard Crossover Project since it is 
fully reimbursable by UPRR. ACTA utilizes the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) account to pay for services and 
reimburses that account when payment is received from UPRR. 

   



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #08 

  ２

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed and approved the proposed Second Amendment as to form. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 – Second Amendment to Agreement No. M0899 between the Alameda Corridor Transportation 

Authority and Union Pacific Railroad Company 



SECOND AMENDMENT 
TO AGREEMENT NO. M0899 

BETWEEN 
THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND 
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 

 
 
          THIS SECOND AMENDMENT to Agreement No. M0899 is made and entered into 
by the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority ("ACTA"), acting by and through its 
Governing Board, and Union Pacific Railroad Company (“Union Pacific”) as follows: 

 
1. Section II, Union Pacific Reimbursement of ACTA Costs, Paragraph 2 is 

hereby removed and replaced in its entirety, as follows: 
 

“2. The total estimated budget for ACTA’s Work as set forth in Exhibit B-
2, and the maximum payable amount under this Agreement, is Two Million Five Hundred 
Twenty-two Thousand Four Hundred Fifty-one Dollars ($2,522,451).” 
 

2. Section II, Union Pacific Reimbursement of ACTA Costs, Paragraph 3 is 
hereby removed from the Agreement. 
 

3. Section IV, Effective Date and Term, Paragraph 2 is hereby removed and 
replaced in its entirety, as follows: 
 
“2. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect commencing from the 

date of ACTA’s CEO execution and shall continue until three (3) years have lapsed from 
the effective date of this Agreement.” 

 
4. Section IV, Paragraph 6, Amendments and Modifications, is hereby 

removed and replaced in its entirety, as follows (including a paragraph 
numbering correction): 
 
“7. Amendments and Modifications: The terms of this Agreement may 

be modified only by written amendment approved by the Parties, subject to all applicable 
approval processes required by either Party.” 

 
5. Section IV, Paragraph 7, Counterparts, is administratively corrected to be 

numbered as paragraph number 8. 
 

6. Exhibit B-2, “Amendment 2 to Schedule, Scope of Work and Budget for 
Construction Related Activities for ACTA’s Work” is hereby added to the 
Agreement. 

 
Except as amended herein, all remaining terms and conditions of Agreement No. 

M0899 shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
The effective date of this amendment shall be the date of its execution by ACTA’s 



Amendment 2 
Agreement No. M0899 

Union Pacific Railroad Company 
 
Chief Executive Officer or his designee. 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second 
Amendment to Agreement No. M0899 on the date to the left of their signatures:  

 
 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
 
Date:     By:        
  Michael C. Leue, P.E. 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  
 
 Attest:    
  Secretary 
 
 

UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD 
COMPANY  

 
Date:     By:       
 
 Name:   
 
 Title:   
 
 
 Attest:       
 
 Name:       
 
 Title:       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
___________________________, 2024 
HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, Los Angeles City Attorney 
 
By _______________________________ 
 Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy 
 ACTA Co-General Counsel 
 



6/3/2024

Schedule:

ACTA Engineering
Administration

Railworks Construction

Pacific Railway Enterprises, Inc.                        
Scope:

Estimate:

ACTA Engineering
20,000.00$                                             
25,000.00$                                             
57,400.00$                                             

Railworks Labor, Materials and Equipment    
463,902.38$                                           

4,125.00$                                               
29,900.00$                                             
12,753.40$                                             

Railworks Subcontractors                                          
105,000.00$                                           

26,276.25$                                             
1,407,182.80$                                       

50,000.00$                                             

Pacific Railway Enterprises, Inc.                        
320,910.58$                                           

Construction Estimate Total                                                                                                       2,522,450.41$            

Hutcher (Concrete Panel Hoisting Services)                                                                            

3 Per Amendment 2, the cost increase, $267,403.54, is due to the high demand for flagging by Highball Signal for 7 weeks with Form B with overtime and the 
UPRR’s contractor’s work. Also adding 6 EIC’s for the weekend cut over to assist Highball Signal at 5 locations, including overtime and double time. Due to the 
long project delay, the Union Wages have increased, also with delay RailWorks had to demobilize and re-assigned the work force scheduled to remove the No. 14 
turnout, build the straight section of track, re-ballast, distress and surface the new track. RailWorks will need to mobilize again once the project resumes. This will 
require work to start on Wednesday to prep the area and all materials. The removal of the track will start Friday night and go through Sunday night. Saturday will 
include a day and night shift and Sunday double time Works will need to mobilize again once the project gets re-instated. This will require work to start on Friday 
to prep the area and all materials and continue through Sunday night. Saturday will include a day and night shift and Sunday, double time, to complete all work, 
pick up excess material and clean up the site.

Surfacing Crew for Turnout Installation (1 day Travel 2 days Tamp)               

1  Per Amendment 2 the costs increase, $466,394.98, is due to having to correct factory bungalow discrepancies for Thenard C house, picking up material, that 
was supposed to be delivered by UPRR, from Colton and Santa Fe UPRR yards numerous times, required the use of their own flagger when others should have 
provided one to avoid further delays, provided their own equipment operator to dig in conduit periodically when others were not available to assist, train delays 
due to coordination with two (2) dispatchers  due to territory jurisdiction and having to partially install signal equipment and having to return at a later date to 
complete once missing or delayed material was delivered or picked up. In addition, the revised estimate increase is due to the annual rate increases for the labor 
force from last year to the current year. It also includes 6 weeks of work to finish construction and 1 week to test and commission the signal system. 

2 Per Amendment 2, the cost increase, $89,282.00, is due to increased field support to test and commission CP Thenard, CP Long Beach and CP Sepulveda.

Highball Signal, Inc.1                                                                                                     

Final Signal Design for the various Control Points and Software Development2                           

Fencing & Traffic Control (allowance for services as needed)

EXHIBIT B-2

Flagging & Construction 3

Rental Equipment                                                                                                                 
Equipment Operator to Assist Highball Signal with Relocation & Installation of Signal Bungalow

Weld Kits

Administration (contract management, accounts payable)

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

Amendment 2 to Schedule, Scope of Work and Budget for Construction Related Activities
for ACTA's Work

PROJECT: Dolores Yard Crossover Project

Pre-construction Design Review
Construction Closeout Approval

The revised Pacific Railway Enterprise, Inc, Highbal Signal, Inc and Railworks Track Services LLC estimates include the cost of additional signal field support, 
completion of all signal work, test and commision CP's Thenard, Long Beach and Sepulveda, flagging, and re-mobilizing once project resumes to complete the 
Signal and Trackwork for the Project. Increase Administration costs equal 5% of Amendment 2 increase.  

Effective date through end of term

Resumption of Construction through end of term

Resumption of Construction through end of term



ACTA Engineering
Revised Estimate per Amendment 2 102,400.00$        
Original Estimate 60,000.00$          
Delta due to Administration (contract management, accounts payable) 42,400.00$          

Pacific Railway Enterprises, Inc.
Revised Estimate per Amendment 2 320,910.58$        
Revised Estimate per Amendment 1 (231,628.58)$      
Original Estimate (133,220.68)$      
Delta 89,282.00$          

Higball Signal, Inc.
Revised Estimate per Amendment 2 1,407,182.80$     
Revised Estimate per Amendment 1 (940,787.82)$      
Original Estimate (459,553.50)$      
Delta 466,394.98$       

267,403.54$       

Total Estimate Increase 865,480.52$       

Revised Cost Estimate Summary

Raiworks Labor - Flagging & Completion of Construction Items once 
Project re-starts.

Additional flagging due to the high demand for flagging protection to date and the 
months long project delay. RailWorks demobilized due to delays and will re-mobilize 
once construction resumes to complete remaining track work. Includes 5% markup for 
Subcontractors request for additional funds.

The revised Pacific Railway Enterprise, Inc., Highball Signal, Inc. and RailWorks Track Services LLC estimates include the cost of additional 
signal field support, completion of all signal work, test and commission CP's Thenard, Long Beach and Sepulveda, flagging, and re-mobilizing 
once project resumes to complete the Signal and Trackwork for the project. Increased Administration costs equal 5% of Amendment 2 
increase.





Dolores Yard Crossover Project
Signal Cost

Crew Size 6 men crew and 1 Safety Manager

1 Signal/Comm supervisor
2 Signal Test Maintainer
3 Signal Maintainer
1 Safety Manager
7

Duration
7 Weeks 6 Weeks to finish construction

1 Weeks to Test and Commissioning

RE OT DT
Monday to Friday 40 10

Saturday 10
Total crew hours per week 40 20

Total crew hours 280 140 0

RE OT DT
Crew hours 280 140 0

A Labor Cost
Craft QTY RE OT DT RE Rate OT Rate DT Rate Cost

1-Signal / Comm Supervisor 1 280 140 0 144.38 216.56 288.75 70,744.80    
2-Signal Test Maintainer 2 280 140 0 135.16 180.95 270.31 126,355.60  
3-Signal Maintainer 3 280 140 0 127.41 169.8 254.81 178,340.40  
5-Safety Manager 1 280 0 68.12 86.59 112.31 19,073.60    

0 0 0 0 0 0 -                
0 0 0 0 0 0 -                
0 0 0 0 0 0 -                

7 394,514.40  

B Equipment & Vehicle

Total 
Hours

Hrly rate Cost

2,520       18.62$      46,922.40        
280          25.57$      7,159.09           
280          25.57$      7,159.09           
280          30.50$      8,540.00           
280          7.50$        2,100.00           

-$          -                    
-$          -                    

71,880.58        

C Material Cost
10%

QTY Unit Unit price Total Tax Shipping Total
-           -             -                 
-           -             -                 

-                 
D Subcontractor

QTY Unit Unit price Total Misc Total
-                    -                
-                    -                

-                
E Summary

Total Labor
Total Equipment
Total Material
Total Subcontractor

Total Cost

2-GMC Terrain / Safety Manager

Description

Description

Description

1-F250-Vehicle for Signal men
3-Bucket Truck
4-1000 lb Sky track Forklift
5-Mini Excavator

466,394.98                        

394,514.40                        
71,880.58                          

-                                      
-                                      



PACIFIC RAILWAY ENTERPRISES, INC.

DOLORES YARD INSTALLATION FIELD SUPPORT

FEE PROPOSAL

5/30/2024

Sr. Systems Sr. Railroad Sys. Sr. Railroad Sys. Sr. Railroad Signal TOTAL

Engr Tech IV Tech III Systems Tech I Designer II COST - LABOR

RATE 281.17$       241.70$                  204.71$                  157.85$             73.99$        

FIELD SUPPORT 200 200 89,282.00$       

SUBTOTAL -$             48,340.00$             40,942.00$             -$                   -$            

89,282.00$       

OTHER DIRECT COSTS Mileage per IRS Rate

Total 89,282.00$       



  ITEM #09 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:   Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:  APPROVE amendments to two contracts with the IBI Group for services to assist ACTA 

with its  Revenue Assessment Verification System: (a) Amendment 16 to Agreement 

No. C0719 to assign the Agreement from IBI Group, a California Partnership, to 

Arcadis, a California Partnership, extend the term five years and increase the budget 

by $460,800; and (b) Amendment 16 to Agreement No. C0783 to assign the Agreement 

from IBI Group, a California Partnership, to Acradis, a California Partnership, extend 

the term five years and increase the budget by $500,000. 

Recommendation:  

Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer to execute the proposed amendments 

to two agreements with IBI Group, a California Partership to accomplish the following: 

1  Assign Agreement No. C0719 and Agreement No. C0783 from IBI Group, a California Partnershp to Arcadis, 

A California Partnership in order to recognize the company name change that took place in 2023;   

2.  Agreement No. C0719 – Amendment 16 provides for a five‐year term extension through December 31, 

2029 and a budget increase of $460,800 to be paid in 60 equal monthly payments of $7,680 for support 

and maintenance of ACTA’s Revenue Assessment Verification System with the PierPass Validation System 

incorporated; and 

3.  Agreement No. C0783 – Amendment 16 provides for a five‐year term extension through December 31, 

2029  and  an  increase  in  contract  value  of  $500,000  for  as‐needed  professional  services  and  system 

enhancements that are outside the scope of the standard support and maintenance services provided for 

in Agreement C0719.  

Discussion: 

Arcadis, A California Partnership,  (previously known as  IBI) developed and currently maintains ACTA’s custom 

Revenue Assessment Verification System (RAVS). 

Assign Arcadis:  IBI Group has worked with ACTA to develop our Revenue Assessment Verification System (RAVS). 

IBI Group was recently acquired by Arcadis. ACTA is seeking Board approval to assign the contract from IBI Group 

to Arcadis. 



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #09 

  ２

Agreement No. C0719:  Arcadis provides services to maintain RAVS.  RAVS is used by ACTA to monitor and verify 

over $100 million in annual container fee collections from the Railroads. RAVS has worked without incident since 

its  inception  in 2002.   Based on the most recent reconciliation of  invoices, over the  last five years, the system 

captured evidentiary data that resulted in approximately $150,000 in container fee payments from both railroads 

in addition to their self‐assessment payments.  

The  system  is also used  to validate PierPass,  the  truck gate  fee  system used by both ports at  their container 

terminals. The validation of PierPass relates to its fee assessments from cargo owners trucking at the terminals. 

Under PierPass rules, cargo that is charged an ACTA corridor fee is exempt from the traffic mitigation fee charged 

by PierPass. ACTA utilizes RAVS to check the PierPass‐supplied data and verify that the exemption is applied on a 

container‐by‐container  basis.  ACTA  receives  a  $5,000  monthly  payment  from  PierPass  to  verify  the  traffic 

mitigation fee exemption, which, helps to offset the monthly service fee for the RAVS system .  

Board approval  is requested to  increase the contract value of Agreement No. C0719, which would  increase by 

$460,800,  to  be  paid  in  sixty  equal monthly  amounts  of  $7,680,  for  a  new  total  not‐to‐exceed  amount  of 

$ 2,521,338, and extend the term of the agreement by 5‐years through December 31, 2029. This is for the ongoing 

monthly support and maintenance of the revenue system. 

Agreement  No.  C0783:  Board  approval  is  requested  for  Arcadis  to  provide  as‐needed  services  and  system 

enhancements to RAVS. The contract value of Agreement No. C0783 would increase by $500,000 for a total not‐

to‐exceed amount of $ 1,220,000 and extemd the term of the agreement by 5‐years through December 31, 2029.  

The following items are examples of improvements and expansions to adapt RAVS to future conditions: 

•  Integration with the Ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach: The Ports have been improving their collection 

of real‐time data from their tenant terminals. ACTA is coordinating with the Ports to extend RAVS’s data 

sources to  include the Ports’ data. ACTA can fuse Port‐supplied data with the existing dataset to more 

thoroughly verify container movements, to identify discrepancies in potential revenue movements, and 

to support the data analysis discussed below. 

•  Optical character recognition (OCR) of moving containers on railcar on the Corridor: A key gap in ACTA’s 

revenue dataset is independent verification of container movements along the Corridor. ACTA is currently 

reliant on data provided by terminals and railroads. OCR of containers on railcars will provide a valuable 

validation of the terminal and railroad data.  

•  Utilization analysis: ACTA can leverage its large dataset of container and railroad movements to establish 

key performance metrics on how the Railroads use the Corridor. This will help to understand the impacts 

on efficiencies and revenue caused by certain railroad operations. 

•  Automated Equipment Identification (AEI) reader optimization: AEI readers are located at key locations 

throughout the ACTA rail network, as envisioned by Use and Operating Agreement. AEI data is used by 

RAVS to validate the Use Fee. The existing AEI network is being evaluated by ACTA to respond to changes 

in Corridor usage and the nature of marine freight transportation. Optimization of the AEI system may 

include the development and analysis of cargo tracking, and redesign of how RAVS exempts and levies the 

Use Fee on railcars. 



  June 20, 2024 
    ITEM #09 

  ３

•  Detailed understanding of  the Corridor’s environment: ACTA can use RAVS’s dataset  to do a detailed 

analysis of how  import containers move from wharf to  inland destinations, and how export containers 

move  to marine  terminals. From  this analysis, ACTA can build a detailed understanding of  its revenue 

sourcing and transportation trends, seek operational improvements, and ensure that standard opeating 

procedures are appropriate and employed by the railroads and dispatcher.  

Budget Impact: 

The contract value increase for these Amendments are included in the FY25 Operating Budget, including for C0719: 

$92,160 (for first year) of the total $460,800 authorization; and for C0783: $100,000 (for first year) of the total 

$500,000 authorization.  

Operating  Budgets  in  the  subsequent  four  years will  include  requests  for  portions  of  the  C0719  and  C0783 

authorizations towards each year’s RAVS efforts.  

RAVS  allows  ACTA  to  capture  non‐reported  container  fees  of  approximately  $1.8M  annually, which will  be 

significantly more than the budgeted amounts proposed for Arcadis’ services over the proposed additional five 

years of the agreements. 

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed and approved the proposed Amendments as to form. 

Transmittals: 

Transmittal 1 ‐ Sixteenth Amendment to Agreement No. C0719 

Transmittal 2 ‐ Sixteenth Amendment Agreement No. C0783 



 
 
 
 

SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. C0719 
BETWEEN THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AND 

ARCADIS, A CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP 
 
 

This SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT to Agreement No. C0719 is made and entered into 
by the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority ("ACTA"), acting by and through its 
Governing Board, and ARCADIS, A CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP, whose address is 
18401 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 300, Irvine, California 92612 (“Arcadis”). 

 
WHEREAS, on August 15, 2003, ACTA and IBI Group Ltd. entered into Agreement 

No. C0719 for support and maintenance services on ACTA’s Revenue Assessment 
Verification System (“RAVS”) designed to collect and verify the Use Fees and Container 
Charges payable by the Railroads to ACTA pursuant to the Alameda Corridor Use and 
Operating Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, since 2003 Agreement No. C0719 has been amended fifteen (15) times 

for continued RAVS support and maintenance services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the name “IBI Group Ltd.” was not accurate, and both ACTA and 

Arcadis hereby agree that Agreement C0719 was with “IBI Group, a California Partnership” 
(Secretary of State Entity Number 302018271004); and 

 
WHEREAS, in April 2023, Arcadis changed the name “IBI Group, a California 

Partnership” to “Arcadis, a California Partnership” and filed notice of the name change with 
California’s Secretary of State; and 

 
WHEREAS, ACTA and Arcadis consent to the assignment and assumption of 

Agreement No. C0719 for continued RAVS support and maintenance services; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. ACTA hereby agrees to the assignment to Arcadis of all the rights, title, and 

interest in Agreement No. C0719 and Arcadis hereby accepts the assignment 
and assumes and shall be bound by all of the terms, conditions and 
obligations under Agreement No. C0719. 

 
2. Section 2.1 is amended to read: 

 
“2.1 Contractor shall provide for support and maintenance for the RAVS, 
as described in Exhibit A of the Agreement, as may be amended from time to 
time.  The maximum payable amount under this Agreement shall be 
increased by Four Hundred Sixty Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars 
($460,800) for a total not-to-exceed compensation amount of Two Million  
Five Hundred Twenty-One Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-Eight Dollars 
($2,521,338). 



Amendment 16 
Agreement No. C0719 

Arcadis, a California Partnership 
 

 
3. Exhibit A-16, “Scope of Services” is attached hereto and made a part of the 

Agreement. 
 

4. Section 3.1 is amended to read: 
 

"3.1 The term of this Agreement shall commence August 15, 2003, and 
terminate on December 31, 2029, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreement." 

 
5. Exhibit B-16, “Payment Schedule Modifications” is attached hereto and made 

a part of the Agreement. 
 
 Except as amended herein, all remaining terms and conditions of Agreement 
No. C0719 shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 The effective date of this 16th Amendment shall be the date of its execution by 
ACTA’s Chief Executive Officer or his designee. 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / / 



Amendment 16 
Agreement No. C0719 

Arcadis, a California Partnership 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Sixteenth 

Amendment to Agreement No. C0719 on the date to the left of their signatures. 
 

 
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
 
Date:     By:        
  Michael C. Leue, P.E. 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  
 
 Attest:    
  Secretary 
 
 

ARCADIS, A CALIFORNIA 
PARTNERSHIP 

 
Date:     By:       
 
 Name:   
 
 Title:   
 
 
 Attest:       
 
 Name:       
 
 Title:       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
___________________________, 2024 
HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, Los Angeles City Attorney 
 
By _______________________________ 
     Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy 
     ACTA Co-General Counsel 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ACTA Agreement No. C0719 
 

Exhibit A-16 
 

Scope of Services 
 
Scope: 

 
System supported and maintained comprises: 

 
• Code developed and delivered by Arcadis; and; 
• Client software that is part of the System, but only as resident on a specimen standard 

workstation. 
 
Joint Activities 

• Arcadis will work with ACTA to develop and document an overall scheme for reporting 
issues, controlling change, and managing configuration. 

• Arcadis will share with ACTA any information from vendors of the System's hardware or 
third-party software, including particularly but not only Oracle. 

• Arcadis will share with ACTA any other relevant information or findings they develop. 
• Arcadis will work with ACTA to maintain a log of software problems and of the 

corrective actions taken. 
 
Support 

• Telephone support will be supplied from Arcadis's Toronto office 6:00 a.m. 5:00 p.m. 
Pacific time Monday through Friday, except on local holidays. 

• Telephone support at other hours will be available for special (i.e. emergency) situations. 
• Arcadis shall provide 4-, 8- and 24-hour response to support and maintenance services, as 

appropriate. 
•  ACTA's system and database administrators may contact Arcadis staff by telephone re- 

mail for continuing advice and remote support. 
• Arcadis will administer the complete RAVS database environment, subject to the ACTA 

system administrator's direction. 
• Arcadis staff will be available to review system administration and management, as 

required by ACTA. 
• Arcadis staff will cover for the in-house ACTA system administrator when he or she is 

unavailable due to sickness or leave. 
 
Maintenance 

 
On-Call Emergency Maintenance 

• ACTA will request on-call emergency maintenance by telephone and by supporting e-mail. 
Arcadis staff member qualified to analyze the problem will respond as agreed in the 
protocol. 

•  When the problem escalated to Arcadis prevents or will prevent the revenue verification, 
Arcadis will make reasonable efforts to remove the obstacle. 

• Where necessary for recovery, Arcadis will ensure the staff is on-site at ACTA's data Center 
to respond to a critical problem, i.e., one that will lead to loss of revenue to ACTA. 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Non-Emergency Maintenance 
• Arcadis will repair the System's database structure when it is damaged. 
• Arcadis shall provide preventative maintenance on all software components of the System. 
• Arcadis shall provide regular support of system administration: configuring of parameters, 

control lists, etc.; backup and archiving; system tuning for improved performance. 
 

Routine Activities 
 

On a regular basis Arcadis staff will perform these routine tasks: 
• Routine interactions with ACTA’s system administrator and revenue staff. 
• Generate ad hoc system reports as required by ACTA; 
• Undertake scheduled archiving and backup procedures, as required; 
• Review system operation through the various log files and, as appropriate, archive 

system logs and restart system applications; 
• Check for availability of operating system, security, and other third-party software patches 

and updates and install same; 
• Clear temporary folders and various files produced that are no longer required and 

ensure disk storage is well organized and uncluttered; 
• Assist and respond to technical queries by ACTA and other staff as they pertain to the 

operation of the various hardware and software elements of the System; 
• Perform disk defragmentation when necessary; 
• Perform general inspection to identify potential problem areas or issues; Install operating 

system and third-party software package updates and renewals of pertinent licenses and 
undertake backups, as appropriate; 

• Undertake various other routine functions such as rebooting machines, archiving 
configuration and other data, monitoring database activity and other related activities; 

•  Notify ACTA of available third-party software upgrades applicable to the System and, in 
support of ACTA, determine the appropriate cost for purchasing and installing these 
upgrades; 

• Test restore RAVS system every six months to ensure continuity of operation 
 

Staffing 

Telephone and e-mail contact will be provided through Arcadis's Toronto office and will be subject to 
local working hours and holidays. 



 

ACTA Agreement No. C0719 
 
 

Exhibit B-16 
Payment Schedule 

Modifications 
 

 

Pursuant to the 16th Amendment of Agreement No. C0719, for the period commencing on 
January 1, 2025, there is an increase in compensation in the amount of $460,800, which shall be 
paid in Sixty (60) equal monthly installments of $7,680 through December 31, 2029. 

 



 
 
 
 

SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. C0783 
BETWEEN THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AND 

ARCADIS, A CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP 
 
 

This SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT to Agreement No. C0783 is made and entered into 
by the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority ("ACTA"), acting by and through its 
Governing Board, and ARCADIS, A CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP, whose address is 
18401 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 300, Irvine, California 92612 (“Arcadis”). 

 
WHEREAS, on February 1, 2007, ACTA and IBI Group Ltd. entered into Agreement 

No. C0783 for as-needed professional services in support of ACTA’s Revenue Assessment 
Verification System (“RAVS”) designed to collect and verify the Use Fees and Container 
Charges payable by the Railroads to ACTA pursuant to the Alameda Corridor Use and 
Operating Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, since 2007 Agreement No. C0783 has been amended fifteen (15) times 

for continued RAVS as-needed professional services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the name “IBI Group Ltd.” was not accurate, and both ACTA and 

Arcadis hereby agree that Agreement C0783 was with “IBI Group, a California Partnership” 
(Secretary of State Entity Number 302018271004); and 

 
WHEREAS, in April 2023, Arcadis changed the name “IBI Group, a California 

Partnership” to “Arcadis, a California Partnership” and filed notice of the name change with 
California’s Secretary of State; and 

 
WHEREAS, ACTA and Arcadis consent to the assignment and assumption of 

Agreement No. C0783 for continued RAVS as-needed professional services; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. ACTA hereby agrees to the assignment to Arcadis of all the rights, title, and 

interest in Agreement No. C0783 and Arcadis hereby accepts the assignment 
and assumes and shall be bound by all of the terms, conditions and 
obligations under Agreement No. C0783. 

 
2. Section 2.1 is amended to read: 

 
“2.1 When requested by ACTA, Contractor shall provide the professional 
services in support of RAVS, and at the rates specified, as set forth in Exhibit 
A, as may be amended from time to time.  The maximum payable amount 
under this Agreement shall be increased by Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000) for a total not-to-exceed compensation amount of One Million  
Two Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars ($1,220,000). 

 



Amendment 16 
Agreement No. C0783 

Arcadis, a California Partnership 
 

3. Exhibit A-16, “Scope of Work and Compensation” is attached hereto and 
made a part of the Agreement. 

 
4. Section 3.1 is amended to read: 
 

"3.1 The term of this Agreement shall commence January 1, 2007, and 
terminate on December 31, 2029, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreement." 

 
 Except as amended herein, all remaining terms and conditions of Agreement 
No. C0783 shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 The effective date of this 16th Amendment shall be the date of its execution by 
ACTA’s Chief Executive Officer or his designee. 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / / 
 
/ / / / / 



Amendment 16 
Agreement No. C0783 

Arcadis, a California Partnership 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Sixteenth 

Amendment to Agreement No. C0783 on the date to the left of their signatures. 
 

 
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
 
Date:     By:        
  Michael C. Leue, P.E. 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  
 
 Attest:    
  Secretary 
 
 

ARCADIS, A CALIFORNIA 
PARTNERSHIP 

 
Date:     By:       
 
 Name:   
 
 Title:   
 
 
 Attest:       
 
 Name:       
 
 Title:       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
___________________________, 2024 
HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, Los Angeles City Attorney 
 
By _______________________________ 
     Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy 
     ACTA Co-General Counsel 
 

 



ACTA Agreement No. C0783 
 

Exhibit A-16 
Scope of Work and Compensation 

 
Contractor shall provide the following services as requested by ACTA: 

 
• Program enhancement to RAVS NG as required by changes in the revenue operating 

environment. 
 

• In-depth analysis to substantiate ACTA’s Use and Operating Agreement and the 
Implementation and Settlement Agreement changes. 

 
• Program enhancement to RAVS NG to execute the changes in either the Use and 

Operating Agreement or the Implementation and Settlement Agreement. 
 
• In-depth analysis of cargo traffic and corridor usage. 

 
All requests from ACTA for services will be in writing and may be sent via email ommunication. 

 
Management 

Consultant’s Project Director will ensure the firm’s suitably qualified resources are available and 
appropriate throughout their assignments. 

 
Reporting and Billing 

Consultant will bill actual time and expenses monthly in arrears. The invoices will include: task-
by-task descriptions of the work done; and descriptions and supporting material of out-of-pocket 
expenses. The fees will be based on the rate table below.  

 
Rates (Hourly rates are shown in United States Dollars) 

 

Job title 
1/1/2025 

to 
12/31/2025 

1/1/2026 
to 

12/31/2026 

1/1/2027 
to 

12/31/2027 

1/1/2028 
to 

12/31/2028 

1/1/2029 
to 

12/31/2029 
Project Director $355 $370 $390 $405 $425 
System Development Lead 240 250 260 270 285 
Project Manager/Lead Consultant 205 215 225 235 245 
Principal System Developer 205 215 225 235 245 
Data Services Lead 185 195 205 215 220 
Senior System Developer 155 165 170 180 190 
Intermediate System Developer 120 130 135 140 145 
Database Administrator/Junior System 
Developer 105 110 115 120 125 

 



  ITEM #10 

 

M E M O  
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

To:  Governing Board 

Meeting Date:  June 20, 2024 

From:  Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer  

Subject:  APPROVE Election of Chair and Vice‐Chair for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 

Recommendation:  

Elect a Chair and Vice‐Chair of the Governing Board for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 (FY25). 

Discussion: 

ACTA’s amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement provides in Section 4(E), entitled “Officers”: 

“The Governing Board shall elect one member as the Chair of said Board and one member as the Vice‐Chair 

for its first year of operation or portion thereof and thereafter as of each successive July 1, the Governing Board 

shall elect a Chair and Vice‐Chair.   Said Chair and Vice‐Chair shall each rotate on an annual basis between 

members representing Los Angeles and Long Beach.” 

Accordingly, it is recommended that the Board elect a Chair and Vice‐Chair for FY25. 

Co‐General Counsel Review: 

ACTA’s Co‐General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this time. 

 


	Agenda
	ACTA Maintenance of Way Services RFP
	Performance Report April 2024
	Policy Discussion
	Minutes of the May 16, 2024 Regular Governing Board Meeting
	Item 1-Monthly Financial Reports as of April 30, 2024
	Item 1, Transmittal 1-Key Financial Activity April '24 vs '23
	Item 1, Transmittl 2-Montlhy Financial Reporting as of April 30, 2024

	Item 2-Resolution No. JPA 24-1 approving ACTA Officer Positions
	Item 2, Transmittal 1–Resolution JPA 24-1
	Item 2,Transmittal 2–Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6506.6

	Item 3-ACTA Officer and Employee Publicly Available Pay Schedule for FY 24/25
	Item 3, Transmittal 1 – ACTA Organization Chart
	Item 3, Transmittal 2 – ACTA Pay Schedule Effective FY25

	Item 4-ACTA Item 4-ACTA Operating Budget for FY 24/25 
	Item 4, Transmittal 1‐Proposed FY2025 Budget
	Item 4, Transmittal 2-FY25 Proposed Budget Presentation

	Item 5-Modifications to Delegation of Authorities
	Item 5, Transmittal 1–Delegation of Authorities 

	Item 6-Agreement with BCAWR for Information Technology (IT) Services 
	Item 6, Transmittal 1–Agreement Scope of Work
	Item 6, Transmittal 2–List of Proposing Firms & Scores
	Item 6, Transmittal 3–Agreement No. C0922 with BCAWR

	Item 7-Agreement with Jenkins Gales & Martinez for Environmental Services
	Item 7, Transmittal 1–Agreement Scope of Work
	Item 7, Transmittal 2–Agreement No. C0923 with JGM

	Item 8-Revised 2nd Amendment to Agreement No. M0899 with Union Pacific Railroad for the Dolores Yard Crossover Project Reimbursement of ACTA Costs for Construction Related Activities
	Item 8, Transmittal 1–2nd Amendment to Agreement No. M0899 between the ACTA & UP

	Item 9-Amendments to two contracts with the IBI Group for services to assist ACTA with its Revenue Assessment Verification System
	Item 9, Transmittal 1‐16th Amendment to Agreement No. C0719
	Item 9, Transmittal 2‐16th Amendment Agreement No. C0783

	Item 10-Election of Chair & Vice-Chair for Fiscal Year 24/25

	Name of Subcontractor1: 
	Work Performed1: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE1: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage1: 
	Paid This Month1: 
	Paid to Date1: 
	% Paid to Date1: 
	Name of Subcontractor2: 
	Work Performed2: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE2: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage2: 
	Paid This Month2: 
	Paid to Date2: 
	% Paid to Date2: 
	Name of Subcontractor3: 
	Work Performed3: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE3: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage3: 
	Paid This Month3: 
	Paid to Date3: 
	% Paid to Date3: 
	Name of Subcontractor4: 
	Work Performed4: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE4: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage4: 
	Paid This Month4: 
	Paid to Date4: 
	% Paid to Date4: 
	Name of Subcontractor5: 
	Work Performed5: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE5: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage5: 
	Paid This Month5: 
	Paid to Date5: 
	% Paid to Date5: 
	Name of Subcontractor6: 
	Work Performed6: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE6: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage6: 
	Paid This Month6: 
	Paid to Date6: 
	% Paid to Date6: 
	Name of Subcontractor7: 
	Work Performed7: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE7: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage7: 
	Paid This Month7: 
	Paid to Date7: 
	% Paid to Date7: 
	Name of Subcontractor8: 
	Work Performed8: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE8: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage8: 
	Paid This Month8: 
	Paid to Date8: 
	% Paid to Date8: 
	Name of Subcontractor9: 
	Work Performed9: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE9: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage9: 
	Paid This Month9: 
	Paid to Date9: 
	% Paid to Date9: 
	Name of Subcontractor10: 
	Work Performed10: 
	Certifications SBEVSBEMBEWBEOBEDVBE10: 
	Original Proposed SBE Percentage10: 
	Paid This Month10: 
	Paid to Date10: 
	% Paid to Date10: 
	Contract Number: 
	Start Date: 
	End Date: 
	SBE Participation Perentage: 
	Month: 


